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          1                      P-R-O-C-E-E-D-I-N-G-S

          2             THE DEPUTY CLERK:  CIVIL ACTION 98-1232, UNITED

          3   STATES OF AMERICA VERSUS MICROSOFT CORPORATION AND 98-1233,

          4   STATE OF NEW YORK, ET AL. VERSUS MICROSOFT CORPORATION.

          5             PHILLIP MALONE, STEPHEN HOUCK, AND DAVID BOIES FOR

          6   THE PLAINTIFFS.

          7             JOHN WARDEN, STEVEN HOLLEY, RICHARD UROWSKY AND

          8   WILLIAM NEUKOM FOR THE DEFENDANT.

          9             THE COURT:  MR. WARDEN.

         10             MR. WARDEN:  YES, YOUR HONOR.  WE ARE READY TO

         11   PROCEED.  WE RECALL DAVID COLBURN OF AOL.

         12             THE COURT:  ALL RIGHT.  MR. COLBURN, YOU MAY

         13   RESUME THE STAND.  AND I REMIND YOU, SIR, THAT YOU ARE STILL

         14   UNDER OATH.

         15             THE WITNESS:  THANK YOU, YOUR HONOR.

         16             (DAVID COLBURN, DEFENDANT'S WITNESS, PREVIOUSLY

         17   SWORN.)

         18                        DIRECT EXAMINATION

         19   BY MR. WARDEN:

         20   Q.  WELCOME BACK, MR. COLBURN.

         21   A.  THANK YOU.

         22   Q.  YOU TESTIFIED AT YOUR DEPOSITION ON OCTOBER 3RD OF LAST

         23   YEAR -- AND THIS IS AT THE TOP OF PAGE 155 -- THAT AOL DID

         24   NOT THEN INTEND TO EXERCISE ITS OPTION TO TERMINATE THE

         25   PROVISIONS OF ITS AGREEMENT WITH MICROSOFT CAUSING IT TO USE
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          1   IE IN THE AOL CLASSIC CLIENT.

          2             THAT OPTION EXISTED AT THE END OF THE YEAR 1998.

          3   AND YOU THEN HAD NO PRESENT INTENTION; IS THAT CORRECT?

          4   A.  RIGHT.  TO TERMINATE THE EXCLUSIVITY PROVISION, CORRECT.

          5   Q.  AND THEN AT TRIAL ON OCTOBER 29, YOU TESTIFIED IN A

          6   PORTION OF THE TRANSCRIPT, THAT AT THAT TIME WAS SEALED,

          7   YOUR HONOR, BUT AOL'S COUNSEL HAS AGREED MAY NOW BE PLACED

          8   ON THE PUBLIC RECORD -- AND THAT'S PAGE 9 OF THE SEALED

          9   TRANSCRIPT -- THAT AOL WAS NOT NEGOTIATING WITH NETSCAPE TO

         10   USE ITS BROWSER AT THE END OF 1998 AND NETSCAPE HAD "NOT

         11   REALLY" MADE ANY SUCH PROPOSAL TO AOL; IS THAT CORRECT?

         12   A.  I BELIEVE THAT'S CORRECT.

         13   Q.  NOW, AOL DID NOT, IN FACT, EXERCISE THAT TERMINATION

         14   OPTION, DID IT?

         15   A.  NO.  WE EXERCISED OUR RIGHT OR KEPT WITH THE IE BROWSER

         16   PAST 1999, JANUARY 1.

         17   Q.  AND WHEN WAS THAT DECISION MADE NOT TO EXERCISE THE

         18   TERMINATION OF EXCLUSIVITY OPTION?

         19   A.  WELL, THE EXACT DATE I DON'T HAVE IN MY HEAD, AS BRAD

         20   CHASE AND I, I THINK, EXCHANGED SOME E-MAILS.  AS I RECALL,

         21   MAYBE IN THE NOVEMBER TIMEFRAME, WHILE WE WERE NEGOTIATING

         22   THE COMPUSERVE ICW -- IT MAY HAVE ACTUALLY BEEN IN DECEMBER.

         23   HOWEVER, WE HAD INDICATED ALL ALONG TO BRAD THAT WE INTENDED

         24   TO STAY WITH THE IE BROWSER AND -- YOU KNOW, AS EARLY AS

         25   AUGUST, AND I THINK ALL ALONG, THE CONSENSUS INTERNALLY WAS
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          1   TO STAY WITH THE IE BROWSER.

          2             AND, IN FACT, THAT'S WHAT WE DID.  AND PLUS WE

          3   NEVER REALLY PUT IN ANY PLANS TO DO ANYTHING ELSE.

          4   Q.  IS THAT DECISION RECORDED IN A DOCUMENT?

          5   A.  THERE WERE E-MAILS THAT BRAD AND I EXCHANGED.  AGAIN, I

          6   DON'T REMEMBER -- NOVEMBER/DECEMBER TIMEFRAME -- IN

          7   CONNECTION WITH THE CIS AND THE ICW AND GETTING IN THERE.

          8             BRAD WAS REQUIRING TO KNOW THAT -- IF WE WERE

          9   GOING TO PROCEED WITH THE CIS-ICW DEALS, WHICH WE WANTED TO

         10   DO -- HE NEEDED TO KNOW WE WERE GOING TO, IN FACT, STAY WITH

         11   THE IE EXCLUSIVITY.  AND WE EXCHANGED COMMUNICATIONS THAT

         12   SAYS, "AS I'VE ALWAYS INDICATED TO YOU, WE INTEND TO STAY.

         13   I EXPECT YOU TO GET THE CIS IN THE ICW -- COMPUSERVE IN THE

         14   ONLINE SERVICES FOLDER AND IN THE INTERNET CONNECTION WIZARD

         15   AS PART OF THAT."

         16   Q.  WHAT IS -- I KNOW THE ICW IS THE INTERNET CONNECTION

         17   WIZARD, RIGHT?

         18   A.  CORRECT.

         19   Q.  WHAT IS THE CIS?

         20   A.  CIS IS COMPUSERVE.  THAT'S WHAT WE CALL IT TODAY.  I'M

         21   SORRY.

         22   Q.  OKAY.  WHO MADE THE DECISION TO STICK WITH IE AND NOT

         23   EXERCISE THE OPTION?

         24   A.  WELL, AT THE END OF THE DAY, BOB PITTMAN IS -- RUNS

         25   DAY-TO-DAY OPERATIONS AS THE PRESIDENT.  ULTIMATELY, I GUESS
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          1   YOU COULD SAY IT'S HIS DECISION, BUT IN AOL, LIKE WITH MAJOR

          2   DECISIONS AT AOL, ON AN OPERATIONS BASIS, HE TENDS TO DO

          3   THINGS BY CONSENSUS.

          4   Q.  OKAY.  THANK YOU.

          5             I WOULD LIKE NOW TO ESTABLISH A BRIEF CHRONOLOGY

          6   OF EVENTS IN SEPTEMBER AND OCTOBER OF 1998, WHICH I HAVE ON

          7   THIS BOARD HERE.

          8             MR. WARDEN:  AND, YOUR HONOR, IF I AM SUCCESSFUL

          9   IN MY ENDEAVOR, I WILL OFFER THE BOARD AS AN EXHIBIT.

         10             THE COURT:  ALL RIGHT.

         11             THE WITNESS:  THANK YOU.

         12             MR. WARDEN:  CAN YOUR HONOR SEE THE BOARD?

         13             THE COURT:  I CAN SEE THE BOARD AND I HAVE BEEN

         14   GIVEN A XEROX REDUCTION OF IT.

         15             MR. WARDEN:  CAN YOU SEE IT?

         16             THE WITNESS:  I HAVE A HARD COPY.

         17   BY MR. WARDEN:

         18   Q.  NOW, THE FIRST DATE I HAVE ON HERE, MR. COLBURN, IS THAT

         19   THE DISCUSSIONS THAT ULTIMATELY LED TO THE NETSCAPE

         20   ACQUISITION BEGAN ON OR BEFORE 9/9/98.  DO YOU SEE THAT?

         21   A.  I DO.

         22   Q.  MR. CURRY.  CAN YOU TELL US WHO MR. CURRY IS?

         23   A.  HE, AT THAT TIME, WAS THE C.F.O. OF NETSCAPE.

         24   Q.  OKAY.  AND HE DID A LOT OF THE NEGOTIATING FOR NETSCAPE?

         25   A.  HE WAS CERTAINLY INVOLVED AS THE INNER EXECUTIVE GROUP.
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          1   I WAS NOT AWARE OF HOW MUCH OF THE NEGOTIATIONS HE WAS DOING

          2   AS I WAS NOT REALLY INVOLVED IN THOSE.

          3   Q.  OKAY.  AND HE TESTIFIED AT PAGE 22 OF HIS DEPOSITION

          4   THAT WHATEVER THE TUESDAY OR WEDNESDAY OF LABOR DAY WEEK

          5   WAS -- AND THIS IS LINES 10 TO 13 -- WAS WHEN THESE

          6   NEGOTIATIONS OR DISCUSSIONS BEGAN.

          7             DO YOU HAVE ANY KNOWLEDGE TO THE CONTRARY?

          8   A.  NO.

          9   Q.  DO YOU KNOW WHEN THE NEGOTIATIONS BEGAN?

         10   A.  I DON'T HAVE AN EXACT DATE, NO.

         11   Q.  OKAY.  WELL, I'LL REPRESENT TO YOU THAT LABOR DAY LAST

         12   YEAR WAS SEPTEMBER THE 7TH.  SO THE TUESDAY OR WEDNESDAY

         13   WOULD HAVE BEEN THE 8TH OR THE 9TH.

         14             NOW, BY SEPTEMBER 13TH, YOU WERE ON THE TEAM, WERE

         15   YOU NOT, FOR THESE ACQUISITION DISCUSSIONS?

         16   A.  I AM ON EVERY TEAM FOR ANY MAJOR DEAL AT AOL, AS I RUN

         17   BUSINESS AFFAIRS, REPORTING TO BOB PITTMAN, WHICH MEANS I AM

         18   RESPONSIBLE FOR ALL THE OPERATIONAL DEALS -- THAT'S ALL OUR

         19   CONTENT DEALS, ADVERTISING DEALS, ET CETERA.  AND THEN

         20   ANYTHING THAT TOUCHES OPERATIONS.

         21             SO IF WE'RE LOOKING AT A STRATEGIC ACQUISITION OR

         22   TRANSITION, I, BY DEFINITION, WOULD BE ON THE TEAM.  BUT FOR

         23   MANY OF THE REAL STRATEGIC DEALS THAT ARE MAYBE IN THE

         24   WEEDS, OR NEED A LOT OF DEVELOPMENT, OR THINGS LIKE THAT,

         25   THOSE DEALS ARE REALLY DRIVEN BY CORPORATE DEVELOPMENT AT
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          1   AOL.

          2   Q.  AND WHO IS CORPORATE DEVELOPMENT?

          3   A.  THAT IS HEADED UP BY MILES GILBURNE, SENIOR

          4   VICE-PRESIDENT, WHO REPORTS IN TO MR. CASE.

          5   Q.  OKAY.  AND MR. PEARSON REPORTS TO HIM; IS THAT CORRECT?

          6   A.  IF YOU'RE REFERRING TO SCOTT PEARSON, THAT'S CORRECT.

          7   HE'S A VICE-PRESIDENT OF CORPORATE DEVELOPMENT.

          8             MR. WARDEN:  YOUR HONOR, AT THIS TIME I SHOW TO

          9   THE WITNESS AND OFFER DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT 2509 --

         10             THE WITNESS:  THANK YOU.

         11             MR. WARDEN:  -- WHICH IS AN E-MAIL FROM

         12   MR. PEARSON OF AOL TO OTHERS AT AOL, INCLUDING THE WITNESS,

         13   WHO YOUR HONOR WILL REMEMBER HAS THE E-MAIL ADDRESS DKRJJ.

         14   BY MR. WARDEN:

         15   Q.  WHO HAS THE E-MAIL ADDRESS ZGI, MR. COLBURN?

         16   A.  THAT'S MILES GILBURNE, I THINK, AS I PREVIOUSLY

         17   TESTIFIED.

         18   Q.  OKAY.  THANK YOU.

         19             MR. BOIES:  NO OBJECTION, YOUR HONOR.

         20             THE COURT:  DEFENDANT'S 2501 IS ADMITTED.

         21             MR. WARDEN:  09, YOUR HONOR.

         22             THE COURT:  EXCUSE ME, YOU'RE RIGHT.

         23                                   (WHEREUPON, DEFENDANT'S

         24                                   EXHIBIT NUMBER 2509 WAS

         25                                   RECEIVED IN EVIDENCE.)
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          1   BY MR. WARDEN:

          2   Q.  NOW, THIS E-MAIL IS DATED SEPTEMBER 13, 1998.  AND IN

          3   ITEM 1 ON PAGE 1, UNDER THE HEADING "DISCUSSION OF KEY

          4   WORKPLACES AND TEAMS," THE FIFTH LINE BELOW THAT HEADING, IT

          5   LISTS THE SENIOR TEAM, INCLUDING MR. GILBURNE AND YOURSELF;

          6   IS THAT CORRECT?

          7   A.  THAT'S WHAT THE E-MAIL INDICATES, THAT'S CORRECT.

          8   Q.  SO YOU WERE ON THIS ODYSSEY TEAM -- PROJECT ODYSSEY --

          9   NO LATER THAN SEPTEMBER 13; IS THAT CORRECT?

         10   A.  CORRECT.

         11   Q.  THIS E-MAIL ALSO PRESENTS ON THE SECOND PAGE AN ANALYSIS

         12   OF WHAT'S CALLED THE BASIC STRATEGIC RATIONALE.  DO YOU SEE

         13   THAT UNDER "LEVEL 2:  STRATEGIC PLAN" ON THE BOTTOM PART OF

         14   THE PAGE?

         15   A.  I DO.

         16   Q.  AND THIS WAS?

         17             THE COURT:  WHERE ARE YOU?

         18             MR. WARDEN:  I AM ON THE SECOND PAGE OF THE

         19   E-MAIL, YOUR HONOR, AT THE BOTTOM 40 PERCENT, "LEVEL 2:

         20   STRATEGIC PLAN."

         21             THE COURT:  YES.

         22             MR. WARDEN:  AND THEN UNDER "BASIC STRATEGIC

         23   RATIONALE."

         24             THE COURT:  GOT IT.

         25   BY MR. WARDEN:
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          1   Q.  AND THERE IS PRESENTED THE BASIC STRATEGIC RATIONALE AS

          2   SEEN AT THAT TIME FOR THIS TRANSACTION -- THAT IS, THE

          3   AOL/NETSCAPE ACQUISITION.  AM I CORRECT?

          4   A.  WELL, THIS IS AN E-MAIL THAT'S DRAFTED BY A

          5   VICE-PRESIDENT OF CORPORATE DEVELOPMENT.  AND SO I AM QUITE

          6   CONFIDENT THAT IT DOES NOT REFLECT WHAT THE ENTIRE AOL

          7   VIEWED ABOUT ALL THE STRATEGIC PIECES OF THE DEAL.

          8             LIKE IN ANY ACQUISITION OF THIS SIZE, WHAT HAPPENS

          9   AT AOL IS THE CORPORATE DEVELOPMENT FOLKS, WHO ARE A LITTLE

         10   DISTANCED FROM OPERATIONS, COME UP WITH AN OVERALL STRATEGIC

         11   PLAN.  OFTEN, THAT IS, YOU KNOW, REQUESTED BY MR. CASE, WHO

         12   WOULD SAY, "WELL, COULD WE LOOK AT THIS?  COULD WE LOOK AT

         13   THAT."  AND THEN CORPORATE DEVELOPMENT TAKES THOSE IDEAS AT

         14   70,000 FEET, BRINGS THEM DOWN TO 50,000 FEET AND STARTS

         15   WORKING THE ANALYSIS.

         16             THEN, OVER THE COURSE OF THE DEAL, YOU WORK WITH

         17   OPERATIONS AND THE REST OF AOL TO DETERMINE WHAT IS THE

         18   RIGHT STRATEGY, WHY WOULD WE DO IT, HOW WOULD WE INTEGRATE

         19   IT, ET CETERA.

         20             SO I'M NOT SURE THIS REPRESENTS ANY MORE THAN HIS

         21   THINKING, BUT PROBABLY IN DISCUSSIONS AT LEAST WITH MILES.

         22   Q.  OKAY.  THAT WAS HIS THINKING AT THE TIME, AT LEAST IN

         23   DISCUSSION WITH MILES.

         24             AND ISN'T IT TRUE THAT MR. PEARSON LED FINANCIAL

         25   AND MARKET DUE DILIGENCE AND ANALYSIS FOR ALL THREE PARTS OF
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          1   THE NETSCAPE BUSINESS?

          2   A.  MR. PEARSON'S JOB REALLY AT THE END OF THE DAY WAS TO BE

          3   LIKE A TRAFFIC COP, TO MAKE SURE ALL OF THE PIECES OF THE

          4   DEAL WERE BEING ANALYZED AND PEOPLE WERE DOING THE RIGHT

          5   THINGS.

          6             AND HE MAY HAVE ACTUALLY HAD A LABORING OAR IN

          7   PIECES OF THOSE DEALS, BUT SCOTT WAS -- WHAT I WOULD CALL

          8   HIM ON THIS DEAL AT THE END OF THE DAY -- THE TRAFFIC

          9   DRIVER.

         10   Q.  SO IF IT WAS REPORTED TO MR. CASE LATER IN SEPTEMBER

         11   THAT SCOTT IS LEADING FINANCIAL AND MARKET DUE DILIGENCE AND

         12   ANALYSIS FOR ALL THREE PARTS OF THE NETSCAPE BUSINESS, THAT

         13   WAS INCORRECT?

         14   A.  WELL, WHAT "LEADING" MEANS AND WHAT HIS ROLE IS IN THE

         15   COMPANY IS REALLY MILES' GUIDING HAND IN PUTTING TOGETHER

         16   THE PIECES OF THE PUZZLE.  THEN YOU LOOK AT FINANCIAL, WHERE

         17   WE'LL USE OUTSIDE ACCOUNTANTS OR INSIDE ACCOUNTS.  WE MAY

         18   USE OUTSIDE INVESTMENT BANKERS.  WE MAY USE CONSULTANTS.

         19   THEY WOULD REALLY DRIVE WHAT THE FINANCIAL STRATEGY WOULD

         20   LOOK LIKE.

         21             HIS JOB WOULD THEN BE LIKE THE LIAISON TO THE REST

         22   OF AOL ON THOSE ISSUES.  SO IF THEY HAD QUESTIONS -- WHAT

         23   MODELS MAKE SENSE, WHAT ASSUMPTIONS YOU SHOULD USE, AND

         24   INFORMATION LIKE THAT, HE WOULD BE THE ONE TO GO FIND IT AND

         25   RELAY IT BACK, AND THEN WOULD WORK WITH THE OUTSIDE PEOPLE
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          1   AND THE INSIDE PEOPLE ON WHATEVER ANALYSIS CAME OUT.

          2             THAT'S WHAT WE MEAN IN THIS CASE AS TO HIM BY

          3   "LEAD."

          4   Q.  OKAY.  SO --

          5   A.  JUST TO FINISH --

          6   Q.  I'M SORRY.

          7   A.  I'M SORRY.  BECAUSE, AT THE END OF THE DAY, MILES IS

          8   REALLY DRIVING THE DEAL --

          9   Q.  RIGHT.

         10   A.  -- UNTIL A HAND-OFF ON PIECES OR PARTS OF IT COMES.

         11   Q.  ALL RIGHT.  SO IF MILES REPORTED TO STEVE CASE THAT

         12   SCOTT IS LEADING FINANCIAL AND MARKET DUE DILIGENCE AND

         13   ANALYSIS FOR ALL THREE PARTS OF THE NETSCAPE BUSINESS, AND

         14   IS ALSO LEADING THE FINANCIAL MODELING PART OF THE

         15   TRANSACTION WITH GOLDMAN, YOU WOULD HAVE NO REASON TO DOUBT

         16   THAT, GIVEN MILES' ROLE?

         17   A.  AGAIN LEADING IS -- AND I WANT TO BE VERY ACCURATE HERE.

         18   WHEN WE SAY "WITH SCOTT LEADING," HE IS THE LIAISON; HE IS

         19   DOING INTERFACES.

         20             AT THE END OF THE DAY, MIKE KELLY, OUR C.F.O., IS

         21   SINGING OFF ON ANY FINANCIAL MODELS.  HE IS THE FINAL

         22   ARBITER, DECISION-MAKER OR COMFORT ON THAT TYPE OF THING.

         23             WHAT SCOTT IS DOING HERE IS REALLY HERDING ALL THE

         24   CATS, GETTING EVERYBODY TO START DOING THE PIECES THEY HAVE

         25   TO DO, MAKE SURE THEY'RE HITTING TIME LINES, AND MAKE SURE,
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          1   IF HE NEEDS INFORMATION INSIDE, HE'S GETTING THAT TO PEOPLE.

          2   THAT IS WHAT WE MEAN BY "LEAD" IN THIS CONTEXT.

          3   Q.  OKAY.  AND I TAKE IT, YOU WILL, NONETHELESS, AGREE WITH

          4   ME THAT HE PRESENTED ON SEPTEMBER 13TH, 1998, A STRATEGIC

          5   RATIONALE FOR THIS ACQUISITION AND SENT IT TO THE PEOPLE

          6   WORKING ON THE DEAL?

          7   A.  IF YOU MEAN DID HE WRITE WHAT'S IN THIS E-MAIL, I

          8   BELIEVE HE DID, YES.

          9   Q.  THANK YOU.

         10             NOW, MR. CURRY TESTIFIED AT PAGES 17, 19 TO 20 OF

         11   HIS -- AND 74 OF HIS DEPOSITION THAT THERE WAS A MEETING ON

         12   SEPTEMBER 16, 1998 CONSISTING OF A DUE DILIGENCE SESSION

         13   BETWEEN AOL'S BANKERS AND NETSCAPE'S BANKERS.

         14             DO YOU HAVE ANY REASON TO DOUBT THAT?

         15   A.  NO.

         16   Q.  AND GOING BACK TO 25 -- I'M SORRY.  I NOW PLACE BEFORE

         17   THE WITNESS AND OFFER 2510 -- DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT 2510.

         18   A.  ARE WE DONE WITH THIS EXHIBIT?

         19   Q.  2509?

         20   A.  YES.

         21   Q.  WE ARE DONE WITH THAT FOR THE TIME BEING.

         22   A.  OKAY.

         23   Q.  BUT YOU MAY RETAIN THAT AT HAND.

         24   A.  ALL RIGHT.  MR. WARDEN?

         25   Q.  YES, SIR.
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          1   A.  I HAVE A BUNCH OF OTHER PAPERWORK UP HERE.  CAN I MOVE

          2   THIS?

          3   Q.  I THINK THIS IS LEFT FROM LAST WEEK'S WITNESS.

          4             THE COURT:  IF NOT EARLIER.

          5             THE WITNESS:  I SAW THE LAUNDRY SLIP.

          6             MR. WARDEN:  NOW, I HAVE OFFERED THIS DOCUMENT,

          7   2510, YOUR HONOR.

          8             MR. BOIES:  NO OBJECTION, YOUR HONOR.

          9             THE COURT:  THIS IS ANOTHER INTRA-AOL DOCUMENT?

         10             MR. WARDEN:  YES, YOUR HONOR.

         11             THE COURT:  OKAY.  DEFENDANT'S 2510 IS ADMITTED.

         12                                   (WHEREUPON, DEFENDANT'S

         13                                   EXHIBIT NUMBER 2510 WAS

         14                                   RECEIVED IN EVIDENCE.)

         15   BY MR. WARDEN:

         16   Q.  AND THIS DOCUMENT IS AUTHORED BY MR. GILMORE?

         17   A.  GILBURNE.

         18   Q.  GILBURNE, I'M SORRY.  IS THAT CORRECT; MILES GILBURNE?

         19   A.  THAT'S CORRECT.

         20   Q.  AND IT IS SENT TO YOU, STEVE CASE, AND K. BUSHKIN.  WHO

         21   IS K. BUSHKIN?

         22   A.  IT'S KATHY BUSHKIN, AND SHE'S OUR HEAD OF CORPORATE

         23   COMMUNICATIONS.

         24   Q.  AND MR. VRADENBURG WAS IN THE GENERAL COUNSEL; IS THAT

         25   CORRECT?
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          1   A.  I BELIEVE HE WAS AT THAT TIME.

          2   Q.  AND K. LERER AND J. MIKE KELLY.  WHO ARE THEY?

          3   A.  K. LERER IS KENNY LERER.  HE'S OUR OUTSIDE PUBLIC

          4   RELATIONS COMMUNICATIONS PERSON.  AND J. MIKE KELLY IS MIKE

          5   KELLY, OUR C.F.O.

          6   Q.  AND B. PITT, C21?

          7   A.  YES.  AS I PREVIOUSLY TESTIFIED, THAT'S BOB PITTMAN, WHO

          8   IS THE PRESIDENT OF AOL AND WHO I REPORT TO.

          9   Q.  OKAY.  AND HOW ABOUT NOVACK, K.?

         10   A.  THAT'S KEN NOVACK, WHO IS CURRENTLY OUR VICE-CHAIRMAN.

         11   Q.  AND S.D. PEARSON IS SCOTT PEARSON?

         12   A.  THAT'S CORRECT.

         13   Q.  OKAY.  NOW, I'VE USED THIS DOCUMENT, WHICH IS DATED

         14   TUESDAY, SEPTEMBER 26TH -- SEPTEMBER 22ND, 1998 TO PLACE A

         15   NUMBER OF DATES, MR. COLBURN.

         16             IF YOU'LL LOOK DOWN AT THE BOTTOM OF THE FIRST

         17   PAGE, IT SAYS THAT SUN BUYS INTO AN AOL/NETSCAPE ACQUISITION

         18   ON MY CHART.  AND DO YOU SEE WHERE IT SAYS DOWN THERE

         19   "SEVERAL HOUR MEETING AT SUN ON WEDNESDAY TO DISCUSS BOTH

         20   THE PLATFORM DEAL AND ODYSSEY.  GOOD CONCEPTUAL BUY-IN ON

         21   BOTH."

         22             DO YOU SEE THAT?

         23   A.  I DO.

         24   Q.  AND THE WEDNESDAY BEFORE TUESDAY, SEPTEMBER 22ND, IS

         25   SEPTEMBER 16TH, BASED ON THE CALENDAR; ISN'T THAT CORRECT?
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          1   A.  I GUESS SO.  I MEAN, I COULD DO THE MATH.  I'LL TRUST

          2   YOU.

          3   Q.  OKAY.  THANK YOU.

          4             THEN IF YOU'LL LOOK AT THE FIRST LINE -- THE FIRST

          5   SENTENCE UNDER "STATUS OF DISCUSSIONS WITH NETSCAPE," THE

          6   TOP OF THE PAGE, IT SAYS, "I MET WITH BARKSDALE ON THURSDAY

          7   AND WENT THROUGH THE RATIONALE FOR THE MERGER.  THERE IS

          8   AGREEMENT ON THE FIT AND BUY-IN ON THE DESIRABILITY OF DOING

          9   A DEAL."

         10             SO THAT WOULD BE THE NEXT DAY AFTER THE SUN

         11   MEETING ON WEDNESDAY, SEPTEMBER 17TH, 1998, CORRECT?

         12   A.  IT APPEARS TO BE.

         13   Q.  THEN IF YOU GO DOWN TO THE BOTTOM OF THE NEXT PARAGRAPH,

         14   YOU WILL SEE THE STATEMENT -- THE LAST TWO LINES -- "STEVE

         15   HAD BREAKFAST WITH BARKSDALE IN ASPEN ON SATURDAY" -- THAT

         16   WOULD BE TWO DAYS AFTER THURSDAY OR SEPTEMBER 19, 1998 --

         17   "UPDATE IN STATISTICS, REAFFIRMATION OF INTEREST FROM BOTH

         18   SIDES."

         19             DO YOU SEE THAT?

         20   A.  I DO.

         21   Q.  AND STEVE THERE IS STEVE CASE; IS IT NOT?

         22   A.  I BELIEVE IT IS.

         23   Q.  NOW, IF YOU WILL TURN TO THE LAST PAGE OF THIS DOCUMENT

         24   DATED -- THAT IS, DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT 2510, DATED

         25   SEPTEMBER 22, 1998 -- YOU WILL SEE IN PARAGRAPH 8 THAT YOU
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          1   AND YOUR TEAM, "COLBURN AND HIS TEAM ARE DRIVING THE SUN

          2   PLATFORM DEAL."

          3             AND THEN IN THE LAST SENTENCE OF THAT PARAGRAPH,

          4   IT SAYS, "COLBURN'S GROUP SHOULD ALSO WORK WITH SCOTT TO

          5   HELP IN THE ANALYSIS OF HOW THE DEAL WILL IMPACT THE

          6   MICROSOFT RELATIONSHIP, INCLUDING AN ANALYSIS OF WHAT WOULD

          7   HAPPEN IF WE GOT REALLY AGGRESSIVE AND SWAPPED OUT

          8   COMMUNICATOR FOR IE IN THE CORE AOL SERVICE."

          9             DO YOU RECALL GETTING THAT E-MAIL AND

         10   UNDERSTANDING THAT THAT WAS YOUR RESPONSIBILITY, TO HELP IN

         11   SUCH AN ANALYSIS?

         12   A.  I DON'T RECALL GETTING THE E-MAIL, THOUGH I AM SURE I

         13   DID GET IT, AND I AM SURE THIS WAS MILES' EXPECTATIONS.

         14   Q.  DID YOU DO THIS?

         15   A.  WELL, WE REALLY NEVER DID AN ANALYSIS OF SWAPPING OUT

         16   ONE BROWSER FOR THE OTHER.  AS I'VE SAID ALL ALONG, THE

         17   CONSENSUS WITH AOL AT THIS TIME -- AND IT REALLY HADN'T

         18   CHANGED AT ALL FROM PREVIOUS TIMES -- IS THAT WE WERE GOING

         19   TO STAY WITH IE.

         20             PLUS, WE REALLY HAD NO PLAN TO LEAVE IE, AND

         21   ULTIMATELY WE DID RENEW IE, AS I INDICATED OUR INTENTION HAD

         22   BEEN.

         23             WHAT I LOOK AT THIS AS IS MILES' UNDERSTANDING

         24   WHAT THE PIECES OF THE DEAL ARE FROM HIS PERSPECTIVE AT

         25   CORPORATE DEVELOPMENT AND MAKING SURE THAT WE WOULD BE
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          1   RESPONSIVE TO WHAT I'M SURE HE WANTED -- THE SENIOR EXECS

          2   AND THE BOARD WOULD WANT TO KNOW ACROSS ALL PIECES OF THE

          3   DEAL.

          4             SO HE IS MAKING SURE, ACROSS ALL PIECES OF THE

          5   DEAL -- FINANCIAL, ET CETERA -- THAT THE DUE DILIGENCE AND

          6   WHATEVER HE ANTICIPATED THAT SHOULD BE WAS DONE.

          7             I ALSO WOULD JUST QUICKLY REFLECT ON JUST SOME OF

          8   THE KEY DATES.  I JUST SEE IN HERE THERE'S STILL A LOT OF --

          9   AS YOU'RE READING THROUGH THIS -- A LOT OF DUE DILIGENCE AND

         10   KEY HURDLES TO JUMP OVER BEFORE ANY DEAL IS DONE.  I MEAN,

         11   YOU SEE REFERENCES OF THAT A COUPLE OF DIFFERENT PLACES.

         12   Q.  I DIDN'T SUGGEST OTHERWISE, MR. COLBURN.

         13   A.  AND THE ONLY OTHER THING ON THE PLATFORM PIECE WAS THAT

         14   THE PLATFORM PIECE WAS REALLY SOMETHING THAT WAS GOING ON

         15   IRRESPECTIVE OF THE ACQUISITION.

         16   Q.  OKAY.  WHAT WAS THE PLATFORM PIECE?

         17   A.  WELL, IT WAS TO UNDERSTAND, IN WORKING WITH SUN, WHETHER

         18   WE COULD USE SOME OF THE JAVA PIECES TO DO APPLICATIONS

         19   RUNNING ON VARIOUS DEVICES, OTHER THAN A P.C.,

         20   TELEPHONICALLY.

         21   Q.  OTHER THAN A P.C.

         22             SO YOU'RE SAYING THE ANALYSIS OF SWAPPING

         23   COMMUNICATOR WAS NEVER DONE; IS THAT CORRECT?

         24   A.  NOT TO MY KNOWLEDGE.  AT LEAST AT THIS POINT IN TIME,

         25   PURSUANT TO THIS INSTRUCTION.
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          1   Q.  WAS IT DONE AT SOME OTHER POINT IN TIME, PURSUANT TO

          2   SOME OTHER INSTRUCTION?

          3   A.  WELL, I THINK ALL ALONG, AS A COMPANY, WE'RE MAKING SURE

          4   THAT THE DECISIONS WE MADE ARE THE RIGHT DECISIONS.  AND THE

          5   CONSENSUS HAS ALWAYS BEEN, OVER THE LAST PROBABLY MORE THAN

          6   A YEAR, THAT WHEN THE EXCLUSIVITY WOULD COME UP, WE WOULD

          7   RENEW.

          8             BUT JUST LIKE THEN, YOU LOOK AT EVENTS AND THINGS

          9   THAT MIGHT HAPPEN, AND YOU GO BACK AND YOU THINK, OKAY, HAS

         10   ANYBODY NEW CHANGED?  NO, IT HASN'T.  KEEP GOING.

         11   Q.  THERE HAS BEEN A BIG CHANGE, HASN'T THERE -- YOUR

         12   ACQUISITION OF NETSCAPE?

         13   A.  CORRECT.  BUT THERE WAS NOTHING WITH THE ACQUISITION OF

         14   NETSCAPE THAT LED US TO BELIEVE WE WERE GOING TO CHANGE OUR

         15   PATTERN HERE.

         16   Q.  DID YOU EVER PERFORM SUCH AN ANALYSIS AT THE INSTRUCTION

         17   OR REQUEST OF STEVE CASE?

         18   A.  NO, NOT AT THIS TIME, AND I DON'T RECALL OTHER TIMES.

         19   BUT CERTAINLY NOT IN CONNECTION WITH THE ACQUISITION.

         20   Q.  OKAY.  NOW, MR. CURRY -- GOING ON DOWN THE CHART,

         21   MR. CURRY TESTIFIED AT 74, 75, 87, 88 AND 91 OF HIS

         22   DEPOSITION ABOUT A MEETING ON SEPTEMBER 24TH, 1998 AT WHICH

         23   THE INVESTMENT BANKERS FOR BOTH PARTIES DISCUSSED VALUATION.

         24   WERE YOU PRESENT AT SUCH A MEETING?

         25   A.  NO, I WAS NOT.
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          1   Q.  DO YOU HAVE ANY REASON TO DOUBT MR. CURRY'S TESTIMONY ON

          2   THE SUBJECT?

          3   A.  NO.

          4   Q.  MR. CASE AND OTHERS TESTIFIED IN DEPOSITION THAT, PRIOR

          5   TO YOUR DEPOSITION -- MR. CASE WAS, IN FACT, UNCERTAIN

          6   WHETHER IT WAS PRIOR TO YOUR DEPOSITION OR TRIAL TESTIMONY,

          7   BUT OTHER TESTIMONY WAS TO THE EFFECT IT WAS PRIOR TO YOUR

          8   DEPOSITION, INCLUDING MR. SCHULER -- THAT THE DEPARTMENT OF

          9   JUSTICE, IN THE PERSON OF MR. BOIES, WAS ADVISED BY

         10   MR. VRADENBURG THAT AOL AND NETSCAPE WERE IN WHAT MR. CASE

         11   DESCRIBED AS "SENSITIVE NEGOTIATIONS."

         12             DO YOU HAVE ANY PERSONAL KNOWLEDGE OF THIS?

         13   A.  OF THE CONVERSATION BETWEEN VRADENBURG AND MR. BOIES?

         14   Q.  YES.

         15   A.  I WAS NOT ON THE PHONE CALL.

         16   Q.  DO YOU KNOW WHEN IT OCCURRED?

         17   A.  I BELIEVE IT WAS RIGHT AROUND MY INITIAL MICROSOFT

         18   DEPOSITION.

         19   Q.  OKAY.  AND I HAVE SET THAT FORTH AS OCTOBER 3RD, THE

         20   DATE OF HIS DEPOSITION, OR BEFORE.  THE RECORD IN THE CASE

         21   REFLECTS THAT YOU WERE DEPOSED ON OCTOBER 3RD, 1998.

         22             NOW, FOUR DAYS LATER, I BELIEVE, SOMETHING ELSE

         23   HAPPENED, AND I'D LIKE YOU TO BE SHOWN DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT

         24   2512, WHICH I OFFER AT THIS TIME.

         25             MR. WARDEN:  I AM ADVISED, YOUR HONOR, THAT THIS
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          1   DOCUMENT HAS BEEN REDACTED IN PART, NOT THE PART THAT I

          2   INTEND TO DEAL WITH, AT THE REQUEST OF AOL'S COUNSEL.

          3             THE COURT:  VERY WELL.

          4             MR. WARDEN:  BUT IT IS OFFERED ON THE PUBLIC

          5   RECORD IN THAT FORM.

          6             MR. BOIES:  MAY I HAVE JUST A MOMENT TO TALK TO

          7   COUNSEL?

          8             THE COURT:  SURE.

          9             (MR. BOIES CONFERRING WITH DEFENDANT'S COUNSEL.)

         10             MR. BOIES:  NO OBJECTION, YOUR HONOR.

         11             THE COURT:  DEFENDANT'S 2512 IS ADMITTED.

         12                                   (WHEREUPON, DEFENDANT'S

         13                                   EXHIBIT NUMBER 2512 WAS

         14                                   RECEIVED IN EVIDENCE.)

         15   BY MR. WARDEN:

         16   Q.  THIS IS ADDRESSED TO, AMONG OTHERS, STEVE CASE, BOB

         17   PITTMAN AND KATHY BUSHKIN; IS IT NOT?

         18   A.  IS THAT A QUESTION?

         19   Q.  YES.

         20   A.  KATHY IS ON THE LIST OF RECIPIENTS, OR AT LEAST WHO IT

         21   WAS SENT TO.

         22   Q.  DID YOU SEE DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT 2512 AT OR ABOUT THE

         23   TIME IT WAS SENT BY SCOTT PEARSON TO MILES GILBURNE AND

         24   OTHER MEMBERS OF SENIOR MANAGEMENT?

         25   A.  I'M NOT ON THE E-MAIL.  I MAY HAVE SEEN IT.  I DON'T

                                                                              23

          1   RECALL.

          2   Q.  AND THE DOCUMENT IS ENTITLED, IS IT NOT, UNDER THE

          3   E-MAIL, "OVERVIEW OF INTERNET BROWSER MARKET"?

          4   A.  THAT'S CORRECT.

          5             MR. WARDEN:  NOW, I WOULD LIKE THE DEFENDANT TO

          6   BE -- THE WITNESS TO BE SHOWN -- IT SHOULD BE THE DEFENDANT;

          7   THAT WAS A MISHAP -- THE WITNESS TO BE SHOWN THE DOCUMENT

          8   THAT HAS BEEN MARKED FOR IDENTIFICATION AS DEFENDANT'S

          9   EXHIBIT 2514.  AND THIS DOCUMENT I OFFER UNDER SEAL,

         10   PURSUANT TO REQUEST BY AOL'S COUNSEL, YOUR HONOR.

         11             THE COURT:  VERY WELL.

         12   BY MR. WARDEN:

         13   Q.  WHILE MR. BOIES IS LOOKING AT THIS, HAVE YOU SEEN THIS

         14   DOCUMENT BEFORE, MR. COLBURN?

         15   A.  I MAY HAVE.  I DON'T RECALL IF I ACTUALLY SAW THIS

         16   DOCUMENT OR NOT.

         17   Q.  CAN YOU IDENTIFY IT?

         18   A.  IN TERMS OF WHAT?

         19   Q.  TELL US WHAT IT IS.

         20   A.  WELL, IT APPEARS -- THE COVER PAGE SAYS IT'S

         21   CONFIDENTIAL.  "PROJECT ODYSSEY, APOLLO, DISCUSSION

         22   DOCUMENT, OCTOBER 20TH, 1998, PRELIMINARY."

         23             AND THEN IF I GO INTO THE TABLE OF CONTENTS, IT

         24   LOOKS TO -- IT HAS AN OVERVIEW OF THE DEAL.  IT LOOKS AT THE

         25   CLIENT, THE PORTAL, AND LOOKS AT ENTERPRISE SOFTWARE.
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          1             SO IT APPEARS TO BE SOME ANALYSIS OF A POTENTIAL

          2   ACQUISITION, BUT I WOULD HAVE TO READ IN MORE DETAIL.

          3   Q.  AND DOES IT LOOK LIKE A DRAFT OF A PRESENTATION MADE TO

          4   AOL'S BOARD OF DIRECTORS WHEN IT SUBSEQUENTLY CONSIDERED

          5   THIS ACQUISITION?

          6   A.  I WOULD HAVE TO SEE THE FINAL VERSION OF THE BOARD DECK,

          7   BUT I KNOW THAT WE DID DO A BOARD DECK, DRIVEN BY CORPORATE

          8   DEVELOPMENT, FOR THE BOARD IN APPROVING THE DEAL.

          9   Q.  OKAY.  I'LL ASK YOU TO DO THAT OVER THE RECESS --

         10   A.  OKAY.

         11   Q.  -- RATHER THAN TAKING YOUR TIME WITH IT NOW.

         12             THE AOL BOARD OF DIRECTORS WAS INFORMED, WAS IT

         13   NOT, ON OCTOBER 20, 1998, OF THE POTENTIAL NETSCAPE

         14   ACQUISITION?

         15   A.  I DON'T KNOW THE SPECIFIC DATES.  I'M NOT IN THOSE BOARD

         16   MEETINGS, AND I WOULDN'T HAVE BEEN CLOSE ENOUGH TO THE DEAL

         17   PROBABLY TO KNOW WHAT STEVE WAS ADVISING MR. CASE, ALTHOUGH

         18   I KNOW MR. CASE WOULD, ON THIS SIZE OF A DEAL, MAKE SURE THE

         19   BOARD WAS NOT -- YOU KNOW, WAS AWARE OF WHAT WE WERE

         20   THINKING.

         21   Q.  OKAY.  I'LL ADVISE YOU AND THE COURT THAT MR. CASE

         22   TESTIFIED AT PAGE 10 OF HIS DEPOSITION THAT THIS MEETING

         23   OCCURRED EITHER ON OCTOBER 20TH OR 21ST, AND THAT AOL'S

         24   COUNSEL, MR. SIMS, IN RESPONSE TO MY REQUEST, FIXED THE DATE

         25   AS THE 20TH, AFTER INQUIRY.
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          1             YOU HAVE NO REASON TO QUESTION THAT, DO YOU?

          2   A.  NO, I DON'T.

          3   Q.  AND, FINALLY, THE RECORD IN THIS CASE REFLECTS THAT

          4   MR. BARKSDALE TESTIFIED, EXCLUDING THE DAYS THE COURT WASN'T

          5   SITTING, FROM OCTOBER 21ST THROUGH THE 27TH OF LAST YEAR,

          6   AND YOU TESTIFIED ON THE 28TH AND 29TH.

          7             MR. WARDEN:  AND THAT COMPLETES THE -- WHAT I'VE

          8   CALLED A BRIEF CHRONOLOGY OF EVENTS DURING THAT TWO-MONTH

          9   PERIOD, YOUR HONOR.

         10   BY MR. WARDEN:

         11   Q.  NOW, MR. COLBURN, YOU TOOK THE POSITION AT PARAGRAPHS 7

         12   AND 8 OF YOUR WRITTEN DIRECT, DID YOU NOT -- AND IF YOU

         13   DON'T HAVE IT, WE'LL GIVE IT TO YOU -- THAT A BROWSER IS A

         14   SOFTWARE APPLICATION, AND IT'S DIFFERENT FROM AND NOT PART

         15   OF THE UNDERLYING OPERATING SYSTEM.

         16             DO YOU SEE THAT?

         17   A.  CAN YOU REFER ME TO THE PARAGRAPH?

         18   Q.  7 AND 8.

         19   A.  OH, 7 AND 8.  I WAS AT THE PAGE NUMBER.  THAT'S WHAT I

         20   SAID AT THAT DATE, CORRECT.

         21   Q.  HAVE YOU READ MR. SCHULER'S DEPOSITION IN THIS MATTER?

         22   A.  I SKIMMED IT.

         23   Q.  MR. SCHULER'S JOB AT AOL IS WHAT?

         24   A.  HE IS CURRENTLY PRESIDENT OF WHAT I WOULD CALL

         25   OPERATIONS FOR THE AOL SERVICE, THE COMPUSERVE SERVICE AND
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          1   NETSCAPE AS WELL, FROM THE PORTAL STANDPOINT.

          2   Q.  I'D LIKE TO DISPLAY TESTIMONY BY MR. SCHULER AT PAGES 87

          3   AND 88, STARTING AT LINE 11 OF PAGE 86, CONTINUING TO LINE 5

          4   OF PAGE 88, AND ASK YOU TO EXPLAIN WHETHER OR NOT THIS IS

          5   CONSISTENT WITH YOUR TESTIMONY.

          6             STARTING WITH THE QUESTION AT LINE 11:  "IF

          7   MICROSOFT DID WHAT NETSCAPE HAS DONE, WHICH IS BUILD HOOKS

          8   BETWEEN ITS PORTAL, MSN PORTAL, AND INTERNET EXPLORER, WOULD

          9   INTERNET EXPLORER BECOME A CLIENT AS YOU USE THAT TERM?

         10             "ANSWER:  I DON'T THINK YOU CAN MAKE A COMPARISON

         11   SINCE INTERNET EXPLORER IS OPERATING SYSTEM FUNCTIONALITY.

         12             "QUESTION:  WHEN YOU SAY THAT INTERNET EXPLORER IS

         13   OPERATING SYSTEM FUNCTIONALITY, CAN YOU TELL ME WHAT YOU

         14   MEAN BY THAT, SIR?

         15             "ANSWER:  WHAT I MEAN IS THAT IN THE DEFINITION OF

         16   A CLIENT, YOU ARE TALKING ABOUT APPLICATION SOFTWARE WHICH

         17   RUNS AND IS DEPENDENT UPON AN OPERATING SYSTEM FOR A

         18   COMPUTER TO FUNCTION.  INTERNET EXPLORER IS PART OF THE

         19   OPERATING SYSTEM ITSELF."

         20             NOW, CAN YOU COMMENT ON WHETHER THAT'S CONSISTENT

         21   WITH YOUR WRITTEN DIRECT TESTIMONY AT PARAGRAPHS 7 AND 8

         22   INSOFAR AS THEY MIGHT BEAR ON INTERNET EXPLORER?

         23   A.  THE QUESTION YOU WANT TO KNOW, IF I MAY, JUST TO MAKE

         24   SURE I ANSWER IT --

         25   Q.  SURE.
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          1   A.  -- IS THAT WHETHER MY TESTIMONY, WHEN I SAID THAT THE

          2   BROWSER AS A SOFTWARE APPLICATION IS DIFFERENT FROM AND NOT

          3   PART OF THE UNDERLYING SYSTEM, AND WHEN MR. SCHULER SAYS

          4   THAT INTERNET EXPLORER IS PART OF THE OPERATING SYSTEM

          5   ITSELF, DO THOSE THINGS JIBE?

          6   Q.  YES.

          7   A.  AND, AGAIN, ONE OF THE WAYS I THINK THEY COULD JIBE --

          8   AGAIN, MR. SCHULER IS VERY TECHNICALLY SAVVY.  I AM ONLY A

          9   DEAL GUY.  I THINK WHEN I WAS REFERRING TO IT IN THE DIRECT

         10   TESTIMONY, AT LEAST MY SENSE AT THAT TIME WAS THAT THE

         11   BROWSER WAS NOT BUILT INTO THE OPERATING SYSTEM, SO, BY

         12   DEFINITION, IT WAS A SEPARATE APPLICATION.

         13             CERTAINLY, SUBSEQUENTLY, AT LEAST FOR WINDOWS 98,

         14   IT IS BUILT INTO THE OPERATING SYSTEM.  SO I WOULD CERTAINLY

         15   DEFER TO MR. SCHULER ON THIS.

         16   Q.  THANK YOU.

         17             NOW, PRIOR TO THE SUMMER OF 1998, NETSCAPE DID NOT

         18   HAVE A WEB BROWSER CAPABLE OF BEING INTEGRATED INTO AOL'S

         19   CLASSIC CLIENT; ISN'T THAT CORRECT?

         20   A.  IN THE SUMMER OF '98?

         21   Q.  PRIOR TO THE SUMMER OF 1998.

         22   A.  WELL, AGAIN, I KNOW AT THAT TIME THAT THERE WAS WORK ON

         23   A BETA VERSION, AND THAT WE WERE CERTAINLY WORKING, OR THEY

         24   WERE WORKING ON A BROWSER, OR IN CONJUNCTION WITH US, THAT

         25   WOULD AT LEAST RUN IN THE AOL ENVIRONMENT, BUT THERE WAS NOT
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          1   WHAT I WOULD CALL A READY-TO-MARKET VERSION, NO.

          2   Q.  SO YOU WOULD AGREE WITH MR. SCHULER THAT, PRIOR TO THE

          3   SUMMER OF 1998, NETSCAPE DID NOT HAVE A COMPONENTIZED

          4   TECHNOLOGY THAT COULD BE INTEGRATED INTO THE AOL CLIENT?

          5   A.  I DON'T KNOW AT THAT TIME WHAT THEY HAD DONE VIS-A-VIS

          6   COMPONENTIZATION.  AGAIN, I CAN ONLY SAY THAT I KNOW, TO THE

          7   BEST OF MY KNOWLEDGE -- I'M NOT THE TECHNICAL GUY; I'VE

          8   NEVER LOOKED AT THE CODE -- BUT FROM WHAT I UNDERSTAND,

          9   THERE WASN'T WHAT WE WOULD CALL A GOLDEN MASTER,

         10   READY-TO-MARKET BROWSER THAT WE COULD INTEGRATE WITH AOL.

         11             WHAT EXACTLY THE STATUS OF THEIR TECHNOLOGY

         12   DEVELOPMENT WAS, I'D BE GUESSING.

         13   Q.  AND I BELIEVE YOU TESTIFIED AT PAGE 31 LAST OCTOBER ON

         14   THE 29TH IN THE MORNING, THAT YOU'D GOTTEN THAT BETA VERSION

         15   WITHIN THE LAST MONTH OR SO.

         16   A.  DO YOU WANT ME TO GO BACK AND LOOK AT THE TESTIMONY?

         17   Q.  YES.  I MEAN, DO YOU HAVE ANY REASON TO DISAGREE WITH

         18   THAT?  THAT'S AT LINES 14 THROUGH 23 ON PAGE 31.

         19   A.  PAGE 31?

         20   Q.  YES.

         21   A.  AND THE LINE NUMBERS ARE AGAIN?  I'M SORRY.

         22   Q.  START ABOUT 14 AND GO DOWN TO 23.  I MEAN, READ ANYTHING

         23   YOU WANT FOR CONTEXT.

         24   A.  THAT APPEARS TO BE ACCURATE, YES.

         25   Q.  AND THAT'S STILL YOUR TESTIMONY TODAY?
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          1   A.  CORRECT.

          2   Q.  NOW, BY SEPTEMBER OF 1998, AOL WAS WORKING CLOSELY, WAS

          3   IT NOT, WITH NETSCAPE ON A NEW EMBEDDABLE BROWSER THAT COULD

          4   BE USED IN LIEU OF IE AND AOL'S CLIENT SOFTWARE?

          5   A.  WHEN YOU SAY "CLOSELY," I'M NOT SURE WHAT THAT MEANS.

          6   BUT I DO KNOW THERE WERE SOME ACTIVITIES AROUND CREATING A

          7   BETA VERSION -- AT LEAST GETTING TO A BETA VERSION AND SEE

          8   IF WE COULD COME UP WITH A VERSION THAT WOULD WORK.

          9             MR. WARDEN:  OKAY.  I REFER THE WITNESS TO

         10   DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT 2443, WHICH IS ALREADY ADMITTED INTO

         11   EVIDENCE UNDER SEAL.  AOL HAS AGREED THAT THIS EXHIBIT MAY

         12   BE UNSEALED AND PLACED ON THE PUBLIC RECORD, YOUR HONOR.

         13             I TAKE IT THAT IT IS UNSEALED THEN, YOUR HONOR, ON

         14   CONSENT OF THE PARTY AT WHOSE REQUEST IT WAS SEALED?

         15             THE COURT:  THIS IS 2443?

         16             MR. WARDEN:  YES, YOUR HONOR.

         17             THE COURT:  AND YOUR REQUEST IS TO UNSEAL IT NOW?

         18             MR. WARDEN:  YES, THAT'S CORRECT, ON CONSENT OF

         19   THE PARTY THAT ASKED US TO PUT IT IN UNDER SEAL.

         20             THE COURT:  ALL RIGHT.  2443 IS UNSEALED.  IS IT

         21   ALREADY IN?

         22             MR. WARDEN:  IT IS IN EVIDENCE UNDER SEAL AT THE

         23   MOMENT.

         24             THANK YOU, YOUR HONOR.

         25             THE COURT:  SURE.
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          1   BY MR. WARDEN:

          2   Q.  NOW, I DIRECT YOUR ATTENTION TO THIS DOCUMENT THAT'S

          3   BEEN RECEIVED AS DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT 2443, MR. COLBURN.  IT

          4   BEGINS WITH A MESSAGE FROM STEVE CASE; IS THAT CORRECT?

          5   A.  WHEN YOU SAY "IT BEGINS" --

          6   Q.  WELL, IT STARTS AT THE TOP FROM STEVE C., AND THEN THE

          7   NEXT MESSAGE IS FROM STEVE C. TO B. PITT, RIGHT?

          8   A.  CORRECT.

          9   Q.  OKAY.  SO IT IS AN E-MAIL UP TO THAT POINT FROM MR. CASE

         10   TO MR. GILBURNE AND MR. PITTMAN; IS THAT CORRECT?

         11   A.  WELL, AGAIN, I AM JUST TRYING TO UNDERSTAND THE

         12   CHRONOLOGY HERE.

         13   Q.  OKAY.

         14   A.  IT LOOKS LIKE THERE'S AN E-MAIL FROM STEVE CASE TO

         15   MILES.

         16   Q.  RIGHT.

         17   A.  AND IT'S COPYING AN E-MAIL FROM OR FORWARDING AN E-MAIL,

         18   I GUESS, FROM STEVE CASE TO BOB PITTMAN.

         19   Q.  OKAY.  AND THEN THE SUBSTANCE OF MR. CASE'S E-MAIL

         20   BEGINS, "IN A MESSAGE DATED 9/20/98" -- ET CETERA,

         21   MR. PITTMAN WRITES -- AND THEN THAT PART INSIDE THE CARETS

         22   IS AUTHORED BY MR. PITTMAN; IS THAT RIGHT?

         23   A.  UNLESS MR. PITTMAN WAS COPYING IN SOMETHING ELSE THAT

         24   SOMEBODY ELSE WROTE.  SO IT'S IMPOSSIBLE TO TELL WHO WROTE

         25   IT.
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          1   Q.  ALL RIGHT.  BUT, IN ANY EVENT, MR. PITTMAN EITHER

          2   AUTHORED IT OR FORWARDED IT; IS THAT CORRECT?

          3   A.  YES.  I THINK MORE LIKELY HE FORWARDED IT.

          4   Q.  AND IT SAYS, "PROGRESS CONTINUES IN MOUNTAIN VIEW" --

          5   THAT'S WHERE NETSCAPE WAS LOCATED; WAS IT NOT?

          6   A.  IT IS LOCATED IN MOUNTAIN VIEW, YES.

          7   Q.  -- "TO FURTHER IMPROVE SPEED AND FEATURE COVERAGE.  AN

          8   AOL/IRVINE ENGINEER WILL SPEND MOST OF THE SEPTEMBER AT

          9   NETSCAPE.  THE LATEST CODE ELIMINATED MORE PERFORMANCE

         10   BOTTLENECKS."

         11             AND IT GOES ON THAT THEY ARE EXPLORING FURTHER

         12   STEPS AND A DETAILED SCHEDULE IS BEING WORKED OUT.

         13             AND THEN THE LAST SENTENCE SAYS, "THE NETSCAPE

         14   TEAM REMAINS CONFIDENT THAT THEY CAN HIT A 12/1 GOLDEN

         15   MASTER DATE BASED UPON THE EXISTING SPECIFICATION."

         16             MY FIRST QUESTION IS, DOES THIS REFRESH YOUR

         17   RECOLLECTION THAT YOU WERE WORKING WITH NETSCAPE -- YOU,

         18   AOL -- IN SEPTEMBER, 1998, TO TRY TO GET THEIR TECHNOLOGY

         19   INTO A FORM WHERE IT COULD BE INTEGRATED INTO THE AOL

         20   CLASSIC CLIENT?

         21   A.  I DON'T THINK I EVER QUESTIONED THAT.  IT WAS JUST YOUR

         22   USE OF THE WORD "CLOSELY" AND WHAT YOU MEANT BY "CLOSELY."

         23   AND HAVING ONE ENGINEER, YOU KNOW, AGAINST A THOUSAND THAT

         24   WE HAVE WORKING WITH US, I DON'T KNOW IF THAT IS MEANT AS

         25   "CLOSELY."
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          1   Q.  OKAY.

          2   A.  BUT I THINK I'VE TESTIFIED EARLIER THAT WE WERE WORKING

          3   ON THE BETA VERSION AND HAD CONTINUED TO DO SO.

          4   Q.  AND THEN DID THEY MAKE THAT 12/1 DATE FOR THE GOLDEN

          5   MASTER?

          6   A.  I HAVE NEVER SEEN A GOLDEN MASTER, AND I HAVE NO

          7   KNOWLEDGE OF A GOLDEN MASTER.

          8   Q.  IS THAT WORK ONGOING?

          9   A.  QUITE FRANKLY, I CAN'T TELL YOU WHAT EXACTLY IS THE

         10   ONGOING WORK ON THE BROWSER FROM THE NETSCAPE SIDE.

         11   Q.  NOW, AS THE NEXT PARAGRAPH MAKES CLEAR -- AND THE NEXT

         12   PARAGRAPH IS AUTHORED BY MR. CASE, IS IT NOT?

         13   A.  YES, IT APPEARS TO BE.

         14   Q.  AS THAT PARAGRAPH MAKES CLEAR, THIS WAS GOING ON AT THE

         15   SAME TIME -- AND AS THE TIMELINE MAKES CLEAR -- AS THE

         16   ACQUISITION NEGOTIATIONS, CORRECT?

         17   A.  YES, THAT'S CORRECT.

         18   Q.  OKAY.

         19             NOW, LET'S LOOK AT THE REST OF THIS E-MAIL, THE

         20   PART MR. CASE AUTHORED.  AND IT READS, "ONE OF THE BIG OPEN

         21   QUESTIONS IN MY MIND ABOUT THE NETSCAPE DEAL RELATES TO USE

         22   OF THEIR BROWSER.  OUR RELATIONSHIP WITH MS" -- THAT'S

         23   MICROSOFT, IS IT NOT?

         24   A.  YES, IT IS.

         25   Q.   -- "IS STRAINED AND WILL GET MUCH, MUCH WORSE NO MATTER
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          1   HOW WE PLAY IT.  WE SHOULD DO SOME SCENARIO PLANNING TO

          2   UNDERSTAND WHAT POSSIBLE IMPACTS MIGHT BE OF NETSCAPE DEAL.

          3   I KNOW THE CURRENT THINKING IS WE SHOULD CONTINUE WITH

          4   INTERNET EXPLORER TO STAY IN WINDOWS 98 AND GET THOSE

          5   REGISTRATIONS.

          6             "I REALIZE A LOT OF REGISTRATIONS ARE AT STAKE,

          7   BUT I WONDER IF WE BUY NETSCAPE, AND COMMIT TO MIGRATE TO

          8   THEIR BROWSER INSTEAD, WHAT IMPACT THAT WILL HAVE ON

          9   MICROSOFT CONTRACT.

         10             "SPECIFICALLY, IF WE PUSH SHARE TO NETSCAPE, CAN

         11   MICROSOFT REALLY PULL US OUT OF WINDOWS 98?  (LEGALLY, AS

         12   WELL AS WOULD IT BE PALATABLE GIVEN CURRENT ANTITRUST

         13   ATTENTION.)  MAYBE WE CAN GET COMFORTABLE WITH PUTTING OUR

         14   SUPPORT BEHIND NETSCAPE SO THEY REALLY HAVE BROWSER SHARE

         15   MOMENTUM (SUDDENLY, THEY WOULD HAVE MORE THAN TWO-THIRDS

         16   SHARE AGAIN) BECAUSE MICROSOFT WILL HAVE TROUBLE PULLING US,

         17   OR EVEN IF THEY DO, GIVEN BUNDLING/PIPELINE ISSUES FOR

         18   WINDOWS 98, IT WILL TAKE A LONG TIME (A YEAR?) BEFORE THERE

         19   IS MEANINGFUL DEGRADATION IN OUR REGISTRATIONS, ESPECIALLY

         20   GIVEN OUR OTHER OEM DEALS."

         21             NOW, LET'S STOP RIGHT THERE.  THE OTHER OEM DEALS

         22   WE TALKED ABOUT ONCE BEFORE WHEN WE WERE TALKING ABOUT 1996

         23   BACK WHEN YOU WERE HERE IN OCTOBER, CORRECT?

         24   A.  BACK WHEN WE WERE HERE IN OCTOBER?

         25   Q.  RIGHT.
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          1   A.  I DON'T KNOW THE TIMEFRAME OF THE OEM DEALS, BUT I DO

          2   REMEMBER US TALKING ABOUT THEM IN OCTOBER.

          3   Q.  WELL, YOU RECALL I SHOWED YOU SOME E-MAIL -- AND I AM

          4   NOT GOING TO WASTE TIME GOING BACK THROUGH THIS -- THAT

          5   INDICATED THAT MAYBE THE OLS FOLDER WASN'T ALL THAT

          6   IMPORTANT BECAUSE YOU WERE ALREADY ON MOST OF THE CONSUMER

          7   P.C. DESKTOPS THROUGH OEM DEALS.

          8   A.  AND THEN WE TESTIFIED DISTRIBUTION WAS THE MAIN REASON

          9   THAT WE DID THAT DEAL --

         10   Q.  RIGHT.

         11   A.  CERTAINLY OUR NUMBER-ONE PRIORITY, AND IT HELPED US WITH

         12   THOSE OEM DEALS, RIGHT.

         13   Q.  AND YOU REMEMBER THAT OEM DEALS WERE DISCUSSED THEN?

         14   A.  YES.

         15   Q.  AND NOW MR. CASE IS RAISING THEM AGAIN IN SEPTEMBER OF

         16   1998, CORRECT?

         17   A.  THAT'S CORRECT.

         18   Q.  NOW, HE CONTINUES, "OBVIOUSLY A BIG, BIG ISSUE TO FIGURE

         19   OUT!  MY MAIN POINT IS WE SHOULDN'T ASSUME WE NEED TO OR

         20   WANT TO MAINTAIN IE AS PRIMARY BROWSER.  MAYBE THAT'S THE

         21   RIGHT ANSWER, BUT MAYBE NOT.  WE SHOULD PUSH DOWN ON ALL

         22   POSSIBILITIES BEFORE DECIDING."

         23             NOW, THIS IS TWO DAYS, IS IT NOT, BEFORE YOU WERE

         24   GIVEN THE ASSIGNMENT, IN A DOCUMENT WE LOOKED AT A LITTLE

         25   WHILE AGO, TO HELP ANALYZE WHAT WOULD HAPPEN IF COMMUNICATOR
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          1   WAS SWAPPED FOR IE IN THE AOL CLASSIC CLIENT, CORRECT?

          2             MR. BOIES:  YOUR HONOR, PURSUANT TO RULE 106, THE

          3   DOCUMENT THAT MR. WARDEN HAS BEEN USING BEARS BATES

          4   STAMP 825.  AOL PRODUCED AT BATES STAMP 829 A REPLY TO THIS

          5   E-MAIL, WHICH I WOULD ASK MR. WARDEN TO READ INTO THE

          6   RECORD.

          7             THE COURT:  A REPLY TO CASE; IS THAT CORRECT?

          8             MR. BOIES:  YES.

          9             MR. WARDEN:  I CAN'T TELL WHO -- DO YOU HAVE

         10   SOMETHING THAT SHOWS WHO AUTHORED THIS?

         11             MR. BOIES:  SHOW IT TO THE WITNESS.  HE MAY BE

         12   ABLE TO IDENTIFY IT.

         13   BY MR. WARDEN:

         14   Q.  LET ME ASK YOU FIRST.  HAVE YOU SEEN DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT

         15   2443 BEFORE, MR. COLBURN?

         16   A.  I ONLY RECALL IT SOMEWHAT IN PREPARATION FOR TODAY

         17   BECAUSE I'M NOT AN ADDRESSEE ON IT.  SO I DON'T THINK I'VE

         18   EVER SEEN IT BEFORE.

         19             MR. WARDEN:  IS THIS IN EVIDENCE?

         20             MR. BOIES:  I DON'T BELIEVE SO, BUT I'M HAPPY TO

         21   OFFER IT.

         22             MR. WARDEN:  GO AHEAD.

         23             MR. BOIES:  IF I CAN OFFER A COPY TO THE COURT OF

         24   WHAT WE ARE PRESENTING TO MR. WARDEN.

         25             MR. WARDEN:  LET ME ASK THE WITNESS FIRST.
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          1   BY MR. WARDEN:

          2   Q.  DO YOU KNOW OF ANY RESPONSE TO THIS E-MAIL FROM

          3   MR. CASE?

          4             THE COURT:  TO 2443?

          5             MR. WARDEN:  2443, YES.

          6             THE WITNESS:  A RESPONSE FROM WHOM?  MILES?

          7   BY MR. WARDEN:

          8   Q.  FROM ANYONE.

          9   A.  NO.

         10   Q.  DID YOU SEE -- HAVE YOU BEEN SHOWN DEFENDANT'S

         11   EXHIBIT 2443 IN PREPARATION FOR YOUR TESTIMONY?

         12   A.  THIS DOCUMENT, 2443?

         13   Q.  YES.

         14   A.  YES.

         15   Q.  WERE YOU SHOWN ANY DOCUMENT THAT PURPORTED TO BE A

         16   RESPONSE TO DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT 2443?

         17   A.  I DON'T RECALL.

         18             MR. WARDEN:  I THINK THIS IS FOR MR. BOIES ON

         19   CROSS-EXAMINATION, YOUR HONOR, OR REDIRECT OR WHATEVER IT'S

         20   APPROPRIATELY CALLED.

         21             MR. BOIES:  YOUR HONOR, THIS WAS PRODUCED FOUR

         22   PAGES LATER BY AOL IN CONNECTION WITH ITS DOCUMENT

         23   PRODUCTION.  IT IS CLEARLY, ON ITS FACE, A REPLY TO

         24   MR. CASE'S E-MAIL.  IT SEEMS TO ME TO BE THE STEREOTYPICAL

         25   RULE 106 TYPE OF DOCUMENT WHERE YOU HAVE ONE DOCUMENT AND
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          1   THEN YOU HAVE THE REPLY.

          2             I DON'T KNOW WHY MR. WARDEN IS FIGHTING THE FACT

          3   THAT THERE IS A REPLY AND WHAT THE REPLY IS.

          4             MR. WARDEN:  WELL, READ THE REPLY IN DUE COURSE,

          5   EITHER NOW OR LATER, MR. BOIES, BUT I SUBMIT IT'S FOR

          6   MR. BOIES' EXAMINATION.  IT'S NOT PART OF THE DOCUMENT THAT

          7   I OFFERED INTO EVIDENCE.

          8             THE WITNESS HAS SAID HE'S NEVER SEEN A REPLY, AND

          9   IT'S ANONYMOUS AS FAR AS I CAN TELL.

         10             THE COURT:  BUT HE ALSO SAID THAT HE HADN'T SEEN

         11   THE CASE E-MAIL UNTIL HE WAS PREPARING TO TESTIFY HERE.

         12             MR. WARDEN:  THAT'S CORRECT.

         13             THE COURT:  YOU'RE ASKING HIM ABOUT A DOCUMENT --

         14   YOU'RE BOTH ASKING HIM ABOUT A DOCUMENT THAT HE APPARENTLY

         15   KNOWS NOTHING.

         16             I'M GOING TO MAKE YOU WAIT UNTIL

         17   CROSS-EXAMINATION, MR. BOIES.

         18             MR. BOIES:  OKAY, YOUR HONOR.  THANK YOU.

         19             THE WITNESS:  MAY I SEE THAT DOCUMENT, YOUR HONOR?

         20             MR. WARDEN:  YOUR HONOR, WE'LL DO IT NOW.  HIS

         21   CURIOSITY CAN BE SATISFIED.

         22             THE COURT:  SURE.  SHOW HIM THE DOCUMENT.

         23   BY MR. WARDEN:

         24   Q.  TAKE A LOOK AT WHAT'S BEEN, I GUESS, OFFERED AS --

         25             THE COURT:  IT'S GOVERNMENT'S 2240.
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          1   BY MR. WARDEN:

          2   Q.  -- GOVERNMENT EXHIBIT 2240.

          3             UNTIL THE WITNESS RESPONDS, I WON'T STATE MY

          4   POSITION ON ITS ADMISSIBILITY.

          5             HAVE YOU SEEN THIS BEFORE?

          6   A.  I HAVE NOT SEEN THIS DOCUMENT.

          7   Q.  DIRECTING YOUR ATTENTION TO THE BOLDFACE AT THE BOTTOM

          8   OF THE PAGE BELOW SC CARETS, CAN YOU TELL US, FROM LOOKING

          9   AT THE E-MAIL, WHO AUTHORED THAT?

         10   A.  AGAIN, IT LOOKS APPARENT TO ME THAT THIS IS BOB PITTMAN,

         11   OUR PRESIDENT, RESPONDING TO STEVE'S QUESTION.

         12   Q.  NOW, WHAT ON THE E-MAIL INDICATES THAT TO YOU?

         13   A.  WELL, BECAUSE I LOOK FIRST COMING DOWN UNDER "STEVE" --

         14   Q.  RIGHT.

         15   A.  -- SENDING IT TO MILES GILBURNE.  MR. CASE SENDING IT TO

         16   MR. GILBURNE.

         17   Q.  YES.

         18   A.  WHEN YOU COME UNDER THAT, THEN YOU SEE MR. PITTMAN --

         19   THAT'S HIS SCREEN NAME -- SENDING IT TO MR. CASE.  AND HE IS

         20   COPYING MR. CASE'S E-MAIL BACK TO MR. PITTMAN.

         21             AND THEN YOU GO DOWN -- WHAT BOB HAS A HABIT OF

         22   DOING -- MR. PITTMAN HAS A HABIT OF DOING IN RESPONDING TO

         23   E-MAILS, HE WILL COPY IN THE E-MAIL AND THEN HE WILL PUT, IN

         24   A DIFFERENT FONT, LIKE BOLD, WHAT HIS RESPONSE IS.

         25   Q.  OKAY.  SO IT'S THE --
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          1             THE COURT:  SO YOU THINK THAT --

          2             THE WITNESS:  THIS IS A HUNDRED PERCENT, IF I MAY,

          3   YOUR HONOR, THAT THIS WOULD HAVE COME FROM BOB, OR 99.  I

          4   MEAN, THERE IS ALWAYS --

          5             THE COURT:  THEN I THINK, UNDER RULE 106, IT'S GOT

          6   TO COME IN.

          7             MR. WARDEN:  I'M HAPPY TO READ IT.  FIRST OF ALL,

          8   I DON'T OBJECT TO ITS ADMISSION AND I AM HAPPY TO PUBLISH

          9   IT.

         10             AND JUST SO I UNDERSTAND, THAT'S BECAUSE OF THE

         11   DATE AND TIME OF THE SECOND -- THE SECOND BUSINESS AT THE

         12   TOP THAT SAYS "FORWARD VERIFIED" AND THEN "FROM B. PITT TO

         13   STEVE C., 9/20/98, 10:48"; IS THAT RIGHT?

         14   A.  YES, AND THEN IT'S THE WHOLE THING THAT IT'S COPIED, AND

         15   I GUESS THAT'S WHAT YOU'RE REFERRING TO, AND THEN

         16   MR. PITTMAN OFTEN DOES THE BOLD TO TELL THE DIFFERENCE

         17   BETWEEN WHAT THE INITIAL TEXT WAS.

         18   Q.  OKAY.

         19             THE COURT:  ALL RIGHT.  THEN ARE YOU

         20   OFFERING 2440, MR. BOIES?

         21             MR. BOIES:  YES, YOUR HONOR.

         22             MR. WARDEN:  HE DID, AND I DON'T OBJECT.

         23             THE COURT:  ALL RIGHT.  GOVERNMENT'S 2440 IS IN.

         24             MR. BOIES:  I THINK THIS IS 2240.

         25             MR. WARDEN:  2240.
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          1             THE COURT:  2240.  EXCUSE ME.

          2                                   (WHEREUPON, PLAINTIFFS'

          3                                   EXHIBIT NUMBER 2240 WAS

          4                                   RECEIVED IN EVIDENCE.)

          5             MR. WARDEN:  AND OBVIOUSLY WE DON'T HAVE THIS ON

          6   THE MACHINE, BUT I'LL READ IT, AS MR. BOIES REQUESTED.  THE

          7   RESPONSE, WHICH THE WITNESS SAID IS FROM MR. PITTMAN READS,

          8   "WE'RE WRESTLING WITH IT OVER AND OVER FOR EXACTLY THESE

          9   REASONS, AND WE MAY BE ABLE TO ACCOMPLISH BOTH GOALS, BUT I

         10   DO THINK MICROSOFT IS TOO STRONG TO THROW THEM OUT OF THE

         11   TENT.  THEY CAN HURT US IF THEY THINK THEY HAVE NO OTHER

         12   OPTION.

         13             "I THINK WE NEED TO STAY IN BUSINESS WITH THEM,

         14   CREATING THE NEED FOR THEM TO NEED US, AND THEN LEAVE

         15   OURSELVES THE FLEXIBILITY TO ALWAYS ACCOMMODATE THEM TO A

         16   CERTAIN EXTENT."

         17             AND DID YOU SEE MR. PITTMAN -- YOU DIDN'T SEE THIS

         18   WHEN HE AUTHORED IT, CORRECT?

         19   A.  CORRECT.

         20   Q.  AND IT WAS TWO DAYS AFTER THAT, AS REFLECTED IN

         21   DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT 2510, THAT MILES GILBURNE MAKES THE

         22   STATEMENT THAT "COLBURN'S GROUP SHOULD ALSO WORK WITH SCOTT

         23   PEARSON TO HELP IN THE ANALYSIS OF HOW THE DEAL WILL IMPACT

         24   THE MICROSOFT RELATIONSHIP, INCLUDING AN ANALYSIS OF WHAT

         25   WOULD HAPPEN IF WE GOT REALLY AGGRESSIVE AND SWAPPED OUT
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          1   COMMUNICATOR FOR IE AND THE CORE AOL SERVICE."

          2             DO YOU RECALL THAT?

          3   A.  DO I RECALL THE E-MAIL --

          4   Q.  YES.

          5   A.  -- THAT WE SAW HERE?

          6   Q.  YES.

          7   A.  YES, I DO.

          8   Q.  AND THAT'S THE ANALYSIS THAT COMES TWO DAYS AFTER

          9   MR. CASE -- THE REQUEST, RATHER, THAT COMES TWO DAYS AFTER

         10   MR. CASE SAID SUCH AN ANALYSIS SHOULD BE MADE -- "PUSH DOWN

         11   ON ALL POSSIBILITIES BEFORE DECIDING" WERE HIS WORDS.

         12             AND THAT'S THE ANALYSIS YOU DIDN'T MAKE; IS THAT

         13   CORRECT?

         14   A.  THAT'S CORRECT BECAUSE, AS YOU SEE FROM MR. PITTMAN'S

         15   E-MAIL BACK TO MR. CASE -- AND, OF COURSE, I REPORT TO

         16   MR. PITTMAN -- WE'VE DONE THE ANALYSIS.  AND THE ANALYSIS IS

         17   IT DOES NOT MAKE SENSE TO LEAVE THE IE BROWSER AND TO LEAVE

         18   OUR EXCLUSIVITY.

         19             AND, YES, AS EVERYBODY KEEPS ASKING US, THAT

         20   POTENTIALLY CERTAINLY STEVE WANTED TO REVISIT IT, BUT WE HAD

         21   DONE THE ANALYSIS.  AND IT WAS OUR BELIEF IN OPERATIONS,

         22   RIGHT, THAT, (A) WE'VE HAD A CONSENSUS FOR A LONG TIME IN

         23   STAYING WITH THE BROWSER, (B) WE REALLY HAD NO PLANS TO

         24   SWITCH IT OUT -- YOU KNOW, A FULL PLAN -- OTHER THAN WORKING

         25   ON AN ALTERNATIVE, AND THEN, (C) WE ULTIMATELY DID STAY WITH
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          1   IT.

          2   Q.  WELL, YOU STAYED WITH IT FOR WHAT?  '99 AND 2000, OR

          3   SOME PART THEREOF?

          4   A.  WELL, CERTAINLY FOR THE LENGTH OF THE CONTRACT.

          5   Q.  AND WHAT IS THE LENGTH OF THE CONTRACT?

          6   A.  I THINK THERE'S AT LEAST TWO MORE YEARS IN WHICH WE'RE

          7   ASSURED OF BEING IN THE ONLINE SERVICES FOLDER AT A MINIMUM.

          8   Q.  TWO YEARS FROM JANUARY 1, 1999?

          9   A.  I BELIEVE THAT'S CORRECT.

         10   Q.  NOW, WHAT DID MR. PITTMAN MEAN WHEN HE SAYS IN A

         11   SEPARATE LINE -- AND I'M SORRY I CAN'T PROJECT THIS, BUT YOU

         12   DO HAVE A COPY -- "WE MAY BE ABLE TO ACCOMPLISH BOTH GOALS"?

         13   A.  I WOULD BE SPECULATING HERE, BUT I COULD GIVE YOU AN

         14   INTERPRETATION.

         15   Q.  IF IT'S JUST SPECULATION, WE'LL PASS.  THANK YOU.

         16   A.  OKAY.

         17             THE COURT:  WOULD THIS BE AN APPROPRIATE TIME FOR

         18   A BRIEF RECESS?

         19             MR. WARDEN:  THIS IS FINE, YOUR HONOR, YES.

         20             THE COURT:  TEN MINUTES.

         21             MR. WARDEN:  THANK YOU.

         22             (RECESS WAS TAKEN.)

         23             (AFTER RECESS.)

         24             MR. WARDEN:  YOUR HONOR, I OFFERED DEFENDANT'S

         25   EXHIBIT 2514 -- OFFERED UNDER SEAL -- AND I THINK MR. BOIES
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          1   HADN'T RESPONDED.  I WENT AHEAD WITH THE QUESTIONING OF THE

          2   WITNESS.

          3             MR. BOIES:  YOUR HONOR, DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT

          4   2514 -- A LITTLE LESS THAN HALF OF THE DOCUMENT APPEARS TO

          5   BE A DRAFT OF SOMETHING.  THE SECOND HALF OF THE DOCUMENT IS

          6   A COLLECTION OF PUBLIC REPORTS, PRESS RELEASES, PRESS

          7   STATEMENTS, AND THINGS PRINTED OFF OF THE WEB.  AND AT LEAST

          8   WITH RESPECT TO THOSE, I WOULD INQUIRE WHETHER THEY ARE

          9   BEING OFFERED FOR THE TRUTH OF THE MATTER ASSERTED.

         10             MR. WARDEN:  I DON'T THINK SO.  NO, THEY ARE NOT.

         11             MR. BOIES:  NO OBJECTION, YOUR HONOR.

         12             THE COURT:  THEY ARE JUST ATTACHMENTS.

         13             MR. WARDEN:  YES.  I MEAN THIS IS THE FORM IN

         14   WHICH THE DOCUMENT WAS PRODUCED BY AOL.

         15             THE COURT:  2514 IS ADMITTED UNDER SEAL.

         16                                   (WHEREUPON, DEFENDANT'S

         17                                   EXHIBIT NUMBER 2514 WAS

         18                                   RECEIVED IN EVIDENCE.)

         19   BY MR. WARDEN:

         20   Q.  NOW, IT IS CORRECT, IS IT NOT, MR. COLBURN, THAT AOL

         21   STUDIES BROWSER MARKET SHARE IN A FASHION THAT SEPARATES

         22   AOL'S CLASSIC CLIENT FROM INTERNET EXPLORER?

         23   A.  WHAT DO YOU MEAN BY "STUDIES"?  ON AN ONGOING BASIS OR

         24   HAS STUDIED IT?

         25   Q.  HAS STUDIED -- HAS ANALYZED DATA THAT ASCRIBES A CERTAIN
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          1   BROWSER USAGE SHARE TO IE, A CERTAIN TO NETSCAPE AND A

          2   CERTAIN TO AOL?

          3   A.  I THINK TO THE EXTENT WE DO ANALYSIS HERE -- AND THERE

          4   WAS SOME DOCUMENT EARLIER -- WE WOULD LOOK AT IT IN THOSE

          5   THREE PIECES.  WE MIGHT ALSO LOOK AT IT IN CONNECTION WITH

          6   NETSCAPE DEAL -- HOW MANY WERE TIED TO THE NETSCAPE PORTAL

          7   WHEN YOU BROKE DOWN NETSCAPE AS A SUBSET OF THAT ANALYSIS.

          8   Q.  THANK YOU.

          9             NOW, BY NOVEMBER 3RD, 1998, LESS THAN A WEEK AFTER

         10   YOU TESTIFIED HERE ORIGINALLY, AOL WAS ACTIVELY PREPARING TO

         11   MANAGE PERCEPTIONS -- I USE THAT WORD IN QUOTES -- THOSE OF

         12   MICROSOFT, WALL STREET, AND THE PUBLIC, ABOUT THE

         13   AOL/NETSCAPE/SUN TRANSACTIONS, ISN'T THAT CORRECT?

         14   A.  WHEN YOU SAY "MANAGE PERCEPTIONS," I THINK AS WE GO

         15   FORWARD WITH THE TRANSACTION, RIGHT, WE HAVE TO MAKE SURE

         16   THAT OUR PARTNERS UNDERSTAND IT, THAT THE STREET, AS WE CALL

         17   IT, UNDERSTANDS IT, AND THAT THE PRESS UNDERSTANDS IT.  SO

         18   CLEARLY IN CONNECTION WITH SUCH A DEAL, WE WOULD BE WORKING

         19   ON HOW WE'RE GOING TO DESCRIBE IT TO ALL OF THOSE FOLKS.

         20   Q.  LET ME DIRECT YOUR ATTENTION TO DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT 2445

         21   WHICH IS ALREADY IN EVIDENCE, YOUR HONOR, UNDER SEAL.  AND

         22   AOL HAS AGREED THAT WE MAY PUBLISH THE PAGE I INTEND TO USE,

         23   WHICH IS 1400.

         24             I AM ADVISED BY MS. WHEELER THAT THEY HAVE AGREED

         25   TO UNSEAL THAT DOCUMENT.

                                                                              45

          1             THE COURT:  THE ENTIRE DOCUMENT?

          2             MR. WARDEN:  YES.

          3             THE COURT:  ALL RIGHT.

          4   BY MR. WARDEN:

          5   Q.  DO YOU HAVE A COPY OF THAT NOW?

          6   A.  YES, I DO.

          7   Q.  I DIRECT YOUR ATTENTION TO -- I AM SORRY.  IT'S NOT 1400

          8   BUT 14 IS THE ENDING OF THE PAGE NUMBER.  HAVE YOU SEEN THIS

          9   BEFORE, MR. COLBURN?

         10   A.  NO, I HAVE NOT.

         11             THE COURT:  YOU HAVE NOT?

         12             THE WITNESS:  NO, I HAVE NOT.

         13   BY MR. WARDEN:

         14   Q.  DO YOU SEE THE COMMENT THERE -- LET'S JUST LOOK AT

         15   HEADING TWO -- "OTHER ISSUES TO MANAGE"?

         16   A.  MR. WARDEN, WHAT PAGE, PLEASE?

         17   Q.  THE SECOND PAGE OF THE DOCUMENT.

         18   A.  YES, I SEE IT.

         19   Q.  AND IF YOU WILL LOOK UP AT THE SECOND PARAGRAPH ON THE

         20   PAGE, YOU WILL SEE THE STATEMENT, "EVEN THOUGH OUR PRIMARY

         21   PURPOSE IN ACQUIRING ODYSSEY IS NOT ITS BROWSER (AT LEAST IN

         22   THE SHORT-TERM), THE PERCEPTION WILL BE THAT WE ARE BUYING

         23   IT TO COMPETE DIRECTLY WITH MICROSOFT IN THE BROWSER SPACE

         24   OR EVEN ON THE DESKTOP."

         25             NOW, DO YOU AGREE THAT AOL SEEKS TO MANAGE
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          1   PERCEPTIONS?

          2   A.  AS I SAID BEFORE, THE JOB OF COMMUNICATIONS IS TO

          3   PORTRAY TO BOTH THE STREET, OUR PARTNERS, AND THE PRESS AS

          4   PART OF IT WHAT WE'RE TRYING TO DO AT ANY GIVEN TIME, AND

          5   THIS IS IN THE CONTEXT OF A TRANSACTION.

          6   Q.  AND DID YOU SEEK TO MANAGE MICROSOFT'S PERCEPTIONS ABOUT

          7   THIS TRANSACTION?

          8   A.  "MANAGE PERCEPTIONS" AGAIN IS A PHRASE THAT WE'RE GOING

          9   BACK AND FORTH ON.  WHAT WE WERE CERTAINLY TRYING TO DO AS

         10   FAR AS MICROSOFT IS TO COMMUNICATE TO THEM, AS BEING ONE OF

         11   OUR PARTNERS, WHAT WERE OUR GOALS IN THE NETSCAPE

         12   ACQUISITION.

         13   Q.  YOU WOULD NOT DISAGREE WITH MR. SCHULER IF HE TESTIFIED

         14   THAT AOL SOUGHT TO MANAGE MICROSOFT'S PERCEPTIONS ABOUT THE

         15   TRANSACTION?

         16   A.  AGAIN, THOSE ARE HIS WORDS, NOT MINE.  I THINK, AGAIN,

         17   WE'RE TRYING TO PORTRAY TO EACH OF THE COMMUNICATION SETS

         18   WHAT WE WERE TRYING TO DO.

         19   Q.  NOW, AT THIS TIME WERE YOU STILL CONCERNED ABOUT GETTING

         20   INTO THE INTERNET CONNECTION WIZARD AND THE INTERNET

         21   REFERRAL SERVER AND THEN SOME TRANSACTION INVOLVING

         22   COMPUSERVE THAT YOU MENTIONED THIS MORNING?

         23   A.  THE WORD YOU USED WAS "CONCERNED"?

         24   Q.  YES.  WERE YOU STILL WORKING ON THAT AND WANTING IT TO

         25   COME TO FRUITION -- EACH OF THOSE SITUATIONS?
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          1   A.  WITH MICROSOFT?

          2   Q.  YES.

          3   A.  YES.

          4   Q.  WERE YOU CONCERNED THAT IF THE NETSCAPE TRANSACTION WERE

          5   ANNOUNCED PREMATURELY, THAT THAT WOULD BE DETRIMENTAL TO

          6   YOUR EFFORTS TO REACH AGREEMENTS WITH MICROSOFT?

          7   A.  I AM SURE THERE WERE TIMES I THOUGHT IT MAY HAVE AN

          8   IMPACT ON IT.

          9   Q.  NOW, ISN'T IT TRUE THAT AOL WAS, IN FACT, CONCERNED --

         10   AND RIGHT THERE ON THE SAME PAGE OF THE DOCUMENT THAT YOU

         11   HAVE, 2445 -- THAT THE AOL/NETSCAPE/SUN TRANSACTIONS WOULD

         12   INSTITUTIONALIZE COMPETITION BETWEEN AOL AND MICROSOFT?

         13   A.  WHEN YOU SAY "INSTITUTIONALIZE" --

         14   Q.  WELL, TAKE A LOOK AT THE FOURTH PARAGRAPH, THE LAST

         15   SENTENCE.

         16   A.  I SEE IT.

         17   Q.  OKAY.  NOW, ISN'T IT TRUE, AS IS STATED IN HERE, THAT

         18   AOL REALIZED THAT THE CLEAREST WAY -- AND I DIRECT YOUR

         19   ATTENTION TO THE SAME PARAGRAPH, THE SECOND SENTENCE -- "THE

         20   CLEAREST WAY TO COUNTERBALANCE THIS NEGATIVE DRUMBEAT WOULD

         21   BE TO ANNOUNCE -- RIGHT BEFORE GOING PUBLIC WITH THE"

         22   NETSCAPE -- "ODYSSEY" STANDS FOR NETSCAPE, DOES IT NOT?

         23   A.  I BELIEVE IT DOES, YES.

         24   Q.  -- "ACQUISITION, THAT APOLLO" -- THAT IS AOL -- "HAS

         25   RENEWED ITS INTERNET EXPLORER AGREEMENT THROUGH AUGUST
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          1   2,000," AND IT GOES ON -- AND HOPEFULLY NEGOTIATE EVEN

          2   FURTHER.

          3             DO YOU SEE THAT?

          4   A.  I DO.

          5   Q.  AND DID YOU AGREE WITH THAT YOURSELF?

          6   A.  AS I RECALL, THERE WAS SOME DISCUSSION ABOUT HOW WE MAKE

          7   CLEAR TO THE PUBLIC, TO MICROSOFT, AND TO THE STREET THAT WE

          8   WERE GOING TO STILL HAVE A SIGNIFICANT MICROSOFT

          9   RELATIONSHIP.  THAT, COMBINED WITH THE FACT THAT IT WAS OUR

         10   CLEAR CONSENSUS INTERNALLY LONG BEFORE THIS CAME OUT THAT WE

         11   WERE GOING TO STAY WITH IE, WE ALSO HAD NO PLANS TO SWITCH

         12   FROM IE, AND WE WERE CLEARLY HEADED TOWARD RENEWING IT.  SO

         13   THE FACTS FIT THE ISSUE.  THE QUESTION WAS DO WE PUT THEM

         14   OUT EARLIER TO MAKE CLEAR THIS IS NOT ABOUT AOL VERSUS

         15   MICROSOFT.

         16   Q.  AND THE CONCLUSION WAS TO STATE THIS PROMPTLY, RIGHT?

         17   A.  AS I REMEMBER, THE CONCLUSION WAS THAT -- I DON'T EVEN

         18   REMEMBER US ANNOUNCING WE WERE STAYING WITH IE.  MAYBE WE

         19   ULTIMATELY DID DO IT, BUT I DON'T REMEMBER EXACTLY A PRESS

         20   RELEASE, ALTHOUGH IT MAY HAVE HAPPENED LATER ON.  IT

         21   CERTAINLY DIDN'T HAPPEN RIGHT AROUND THE TIME WE ANNOUNCED

         22   THIS.

         23   Q.  ANNOUNCED WHAT?  I AM SORRY?

         24   A.  ANNOUNCED THE ACQUISITION.

         25   Q.  IT DID NOT?
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          1   A.  OUR ANNOUNCEMENT?  NOT THAT I RECALL.

          2   Q.  WELL, LET ME DIRECT YOUR ATTENTION FIRST TO WHAT'S BEEN

          3   MARKED AS DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT 2519, WHICH I OFFER AT THIS

          4   TIME.

          5             THIS APPEARS, YOUR HONOR, TO BE AN E-MAIL FROM

          6   STEVE CASE, GIVING HIS COMMENTS ON A DRAFT PRESS RELEASE

          7   WITH RESPECT TO THE AOL NETSCAPE ACQUISITION.

          8             MR. WARDEN:  I HAVE OFFERED THAT.

          9             MR. BOIES:  NO OBJECTION, YOUR HONOR.

         10             THE COURT:  DEFENDANT'S 2519 IS ADMITTED.

         11                                   (WHEREUPON, DEFENDANT'S

         12                                   EXHIBIT NUMBER 2519 WAS

         13                                   RECEIVED IN EVIDENCE.)

         14   BY MR. WARDEN:

         15   Q.  NOW, THE MESSAGE AT THE TOP IS FROM MR. CASE, IS IT NOT,

         16   MR. COLBURN?  "HERE IS THE RELEASE BACK WITH MY SUGGESTED

         17   CHANGES -- I LIKE THE BASIC APPROACH, BUT CHANGED SOME

         18   QUOTES -- AND SEE MY COMMENT AT THE END RE: BROWSER ISSUE."

         19             THAT'S FROM HIM, CORRECT?  AND THEN THE RELEASE IS

         20   SET FORTH PRESUMABLY IN THE FORM THAT HE HAS REVISED IT, IS

         21   THAT CORRECT?

         22   A.  YES.  I THINK HE SEEMS TO INDICATE HIS CHANGES IN

         23   BOLD --

         24   Q.  OKAY.

         25   A.  -- OR ITALICS OR SOMETHING.
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          1   Q.  OKAY.  THEN AFTER THE FOUR ASTERISKS AT THE BOTTOM OF

          2   THE THIRD PAGE, CONTINUING TO THE TOP OF THE LAST PAGE,

          3   THAT'S HIS MESSAGE, WHICH HE DESCRIBES AT THE TOP AS A

          4   COMMENT AT THE END RE: BROWSER ISSUE?

          5   A.  I SEE IT.

          6   Q.  AND THAT READS:  "ONE OTHER POINT TO PONDER:  HOW DO WE

          7   HANDLE THE WHOLE ISSUE OF USE OF IE VERSUS NETSCAPE BROWSER?

          8   ARE WE SILENT ON THIS, OR DO WE STATE INTENTION TO CONTINUE

          9   WORKING WITH MICROSOFT TO TRY TO GIVE THEM BEARHUG?  IF WE

         10   DO THIS, IT WOULD BE HELPFUL (MAYBE ESSENTIAL) TO ANNOUNCE

         11   THAT ICQ IS ADOPTING ODYSSEY AS ITS PRIMARY BROWSER AS IT

         12   EXPANDS ITS DESKTOP PORTAL STRATEGY ... THIS STRIKES ME AS

         13   LOGICAL WAY TO GO.  WE ASSURE MICROSOFT AND INVESTORS THAT

         14   WE WILL CONTINUE TO BE BUNDLED WITH WINDOWS AND CONTINUE TO

         15   ATTEMPT DETENTE, WHILE ASSURING ODYSSEY EMPLOYEES,

         16   DEVELOPERS, PARTNERS, ETC. THAT WE ARE SUPPORTIVE OF THEIR

         17   BROWSER EFFORTS AS WELL."

         18             SO MR. CASE HAS BASICALLY ENDORSED THE APPROACH OF

         19   ANNOUNCING AT THE TIME OF THE DEAL THAT YOU'RE GOING TO

         20   STICK WITH MICROSOFT, CORRECT?

         21   A.  AGAIN, I AM NOT ON THE E-MAIL THAT I CAN TELL.  AND I,

         22   MANY TIMES, DO NOT COMMENT ON PRESS SINCE I AM THE DEAL GUY

         23   IN ANNOUNCEMENTS.  WITH THAT SAID, HE REALLY SAYS THERE IS A

         24   POINT TO PONDER, AS THIS WAS SOMETHING BEING THOUGHT ABOUT

         25   AS TO WHETHER WE SHOULD USE THIS AS A TIMING TO ANNOUNCE WE
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          1   ARE GOING TO STAY WITH IE, WHICH WE HAD ALL ALONG REALLY

          2   DETERMINED WE WERE GOING TO DO IT, AND THEN MAYBE THROW

          3   SOMETHING TO THE NETSCAPE PEOPLE VIS-A-VIS WHAT WE WERE

          4   GOING TO DO WITH ICQ.  IT SEEMS TO ME HE IS REALLY JUST

          5   LOOKING AS MUCH TO RAISE THE ISSUE AND GET WHATEVER INPUT,

          6   AND HE IS THINKING AT THIS TIME THAT MAYBE HE LIKES THE

          7   IDEA, ALTHOUGH I RECALL -- AND, AGAIN, I AM NOT IN THE

          8   MIDDLE OF THE PRESS STUFF -- I RECALL THAT WE DID NOT

          9   INCLUDE ANY OF THIS IN THE ANNOUNCEMENT.

         10             MR. WARDEN:  OKAY.

         11             MR. BOIES:  MAY WE APPROACH THE BENCH, YOUR HONOR?

         12             THE COURT:  CERTAINLY.

         13             (AT THE BENCH.)

         14             MR. BOIES:  I DON'T WANT TO INTERFERE IF THIS IS

         15   HELPFUL TO THE COURT.  ON THE OTHER HAND, THEY HAD AN

         16   OPPORTUNITY TO EXAMINE MR. CASE, WHO WAS THE AUTHOR OF MOST

         17   OF THESE DOCUMENTS, AT HIS DEPOSITION.

         18             I DON'T THINK IT'S PARTICULARLY RELEVANT WHAT THIS

         19   WITNESS THINKS ABOUT MR. CASE'S E-MAILS THAT HE DIDN'T HAVE

         20   AN OPPORTUNITY TO SEE OR COMMENT ON AT THE TIME.

         21             THEY DID DEPOSE MR. CASE.  THEY HAD EVERY

         22   OPPORTUNITY TO ASK THESE QUESTIONS OF MR. CASE, WHO WAS THE

         23   AUTHOR OR RECIPIENT OF THESE DOCUMENTS, AND I THINK NOT TO

         24   ASK HIM THESE QUESTIONS, BUT SAVE THEM FOR SOMEBODY WHO

         25   DOESN'T REALLY KNOW ABOUT THEM, IS NOT A PARTICULARLY
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          1   HEALTHY WAY TO PROCEED.

          2             THE COURT:  I AM INCLINED TO AGREE.  I AM NOT

          3   GOING TO FORECLOSE YOU, IF YOU WANT TO CONTINUE TO EXAMINE

          4   HIM, BUT YOU HAVE SHOWN HIM ONE DOCUMENT AFTER ANOTHER THAT

          5   HE HAS NEVER SEEN BEFORE AND HE DOESN'T KNOW ANYTHING ABOUT.

          6             MR. WARDEN:  A GOOD NUMBER OF THEM HE HAS SEEN,

          7   BUT BE THAT AS IT MAY, HE WAS PRESENTED HERE AS THE

          8   CORPORATE WITNESS LAST FALL TO SPEAK FOR THE CORPORATION.

          9   HE TESTIFIED HE WAS IN THE MIDDLE OF THIS TRANSACTION AND

         10   HAD AN IMPORTANT RESPONSIBILITY IN IT.  THESE ARE THE

         11   DOCUMENTS THEY PRODUCED IN RESPONSE TO THE SUBPOENAS ABOUT

         12   THE TRANSACTION.

         13             THE COURT:  WELL, IT MAY VERY WELL BE, BUT MOST OF

         14   THEM DO NOT SHOW HIM AS AN ADDRESSEE OR A RECIPIENT OF

         15   COPIES, AND HE PROFESSES TIME AND TIME AGAIN THAT HE HAS NO

         16   KNOWLEDGE OF WHAT IT IS YOU'RE SHOWING HIM.

         17             MR. WARDEN:  TO THE EXTENT HE LACKS KNOWLEDGE, THE

         18   DOCUMENTS WILL SPEAK FOR THEMSELVES.  BUT I WANT TO FIND OUT

         19   IF HE HAS KNOWLEDGE, OR IF HE CAN, AS HE DID WITH THE

         20   PITTMAN RESPONSE TO THE CASE E-MAIL, IDENTIFY AND COMMENT ON

         21   WHAT'S THERE.

         22             THE COURT:  DO YOU WANT TO CALL CASE?  DO YOU WANT

         23   TO BRING CASE IN HERE AS AN ADDITIONAL REBUTTAL WITNESS?

         24             MR. WARDEN:  WE WILL SEE ABOUT THAT AT THE END OF

         25   THIS EXAMINATION.
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          1             THE COURT:  BECAUSE HE MIGHT BE THE POINT MAN

          2   INSOFAR AS EXPLICATING WHAT THE TRANSACTION IS ALL ABOUT.  I

          3   WOULD BE WILLING TO LET YOU SUBSTITUTE, IF YOU WANT.  HIS

          4   DEPOSITION HAS BEEN TAKEN.  EVERYBODY KNOWS WHAT HIS

          5   TESTIMONY IS GOING TO BE.

          6             MR. WARDEN:  WELL, HIS DISCOVERY DEPOSITION WAS

          7   TAKEN FOR A LIMITED PURPOSE BY US --

          8             THE COURT:  ALL RIGHT.

          9             MR. WARDEN:  -- WITH THE UNDERSTANDING IT WOULDN'T

         10   LAST MORE THAN THREE HOURS, AND IT DIDN'T LAST MORE THAN AN

         11   HOUR AND A HALF OR TWO, I THINK.

         12             THE COURT:  I AM NOT GOING TO FORECLOSE YOU.  WE

         13   WILL GO AHEAD AND LISTEN TO IT, BUT IT DOES SEEM TO ME THAT

         14   IT IS NOT VERY ILLUMINATING, IN VIEW OF THE FACT THAT HE

         15   DOESN'T KNOW WHAT HE IS TALKING ABOUT HERE, OR HE DOESN'T

         16   KNOW WHAT HE IS TALKING ABOUT IN THE SENSE THAT HE IS BEING

         17   SHOWN THESE THAT HE HAS NEVER SEEN BEFORE AND IS NOT

         18   KNOWLEDGEABLE ABOUT IT.  EITHER THAT OR --

         19             MR. WARDEN:  HE TESTIFIED HE HAD AN IMPORTANT ROLE

         20   IN THIS TRANSACTION.

         21             MR. BOIES:  I WOULD NOT HAVE RAISED IT IF WE HAD

         22   NOT ALREADY HAD THE DEPOSITION OF MR. CASE WHERE THEY HAD

         23   EVERY OPPORTUNITY TO ASK THESE QUESTIONS.

         24             THE COURT:  WELL, LET ME WARDEN TRY HIS OWN CASE.

         25             MR. BOIES:  OKAY.
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          1             MR. WARDEN:  THANK YOU, YOUR HONOR.

          2             (IN OPEN COURT.)

          3   BY MR. WARDEN:

          4   Q.  I WOULD LIKE TO SHOW YOU NEXT WHAT'S BEEN MARKED FOR

          5   IDENTIFICATION AS DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT 2526 AND OFFER IT.

          6   THE DOCUMENT IS DESCRIBED AS "SCRIPTS FOR CONFERENCE CALL

          7   AND OTHER INFORMATION" AND SAYS, THAT, AMONG OTHER THINGS,

          8   IT INCLUDES CASE AND PITTMAN PRESS CALL SCRIPTS, BARKSDALE

          9   SCRIPT, ET CETERA.

         10             MR. BOIES:  NO OBJECTION, YOUR HONOR.

         11   BY MR. WARDEN:

         12   Q.  ARE YOU AWARE --

         13             THE COURT:  IS THIS A MEMO?  IS THAT WHAT YOU

         14   WOULD CALL IT?

         15             MR. WARDEN:  I GUESS IT IS A MEMORANDUM, BUT IT

         16   DESCRIBES ITSELF AS "SCRIPTS FOR CONFERENCE CALL."

         17             THE COURT:  ALL RIGHT. 2526 IS ADMITTED.

         18                                   (WHEREUPON, DEFENDANT'S

         19                                   EXHIBIT NUMBER 2526 WAS

         20                                   RECEIVED IN EVIDENCE.)

         21   BY MR. WARDEN:

         22   Q.  NOW, MR. COLBURN, DO YOU RECALL THAT UPON ANNOUNCEMENT

         23   OF THE NETSCAPE ACQUISITION AND THE SUN COLLABORATION, THAT

         24   MESSRS. CASE, BARKSDALE AND MC NEALY HELD A CONFERENCE CALL

         25   FOR ANALYSTS AND PERHAPS THE MEDIA, BUT AT LEAST ANALYSTS?
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          1   A.  YES, I KNOW THIS WAS IN THE PLANNING AND WAS DONE IN

          2   SOME FORM OR ANOTHER.  AGAIN, I WAS NEVER BACK IN THE

          3   OFFICE, BECAUSE I WENT IMMEDIATELY FROM THE DEAL ON TO

          4   VACATION.  SO I WASN'T AROUND WHEN THIS HAPPENED.

          5   Q.  LET ME DIRECT YOUR ATTENTION TO THE LAST PARAGRAPH,

          6   WHICH IS NUMBERED 8 ON THE PAGE BEARING THE NUMBER IN THE

          7   LOWER LEFT-HAND SIDE, 10 OF 13, OR BATES NUMBER 805.

          8   A.  I SEE IT.

          9   Q.  DOES THAT REFRESH YOUR RECOLLECTION AS TO WHETHER THE

         10   INTENTION TO CONTINUE WITH IE WAS ANNOUNCED

         11   CONTEMPORANEOUSLY WITH THE ANNOUNCEMENT OF THE ACQUISITION?

         12   A.  AGAIN, THESE ARE TALKING POINTS.  SO WE'RE TALKING ABOUT

         13   A COUPLE DIFFERENT THINGS IN MY MIND.  ONE IS I THOUGHT YOU

         14   WERE REFERRING TO THAT WE MADE AN ANNOUNCEMENT THAT WE WERE,

         15   IN FACT, GOING TO RENEW OR STAY WITH THE EXCLUSIVITY.

         16             SECONDLY, WHERE THIS JUST SAYS IT'S OUR INTENTION,

         17   WHICH IT HAS ALWAYS BEEN OUR INTENTION, AS I TESTIFIED --

         18   THE SECOND THING IS I DON'T KNOW IF THIS CAME OUT IN TALKING

         19   POINTS OR NOT, OR WHO THIS WAS SENT AROUND TO, BUT I THINK

         20   WE HAVE ALWAYS BEEN CONSISTENT THAT OUR INTENTION WAS TO

         21   CONTINUE THE MICROSOFT.  AND THIS REFLECTS THIS.

         22             I THOUGHT BEFORE YOU WERE REFERRING TO -- AND,

         23   AGAIN, I DON'T DO THE PRESS OR THE CORPORATE

         24   COMMUNICATIONS -- THAT WE, IN FACT, MADE AN ANNOUNCEMENT

         25   THAT WE HAD, IN FACT, EXTENDED THE EXCLUSIVITY.
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          1   Q.  WELL, DO YOU KNOW WHETHER BY FORMAL PRESS RELEASE, OR BY

          2   STATEMENT AT THE CONFERENCE CALL, OR IN ANSWER TO QUESTIONS

          3   AT THE CONFERENCE CALL, SUCH AN ANNOUNCEMENT WAS MADE?

          4   A.  THAT WE SAID WE HAD, IN FACT, EXTENDED OUR EXCLUSIVITY?

          5   Q.  OR INTENDED TO?

          6   A.  NO.

          7   Q.  YOU DON'T KNOW?

          8   A.  WHAT YOU ASKED ME BEFORE IS IF WE HAD ACTUALLY DONE IT,

          9   AND IT IS UNILATERAL THAT WE CAN DO IT.  THAT I DO NOT

         10   RECALL BEING ANNOUNCED, AT LEAST IN THIS TIMEFRAME.  AND I

         11   WOULD HAVE NO KNOWLEDGE OF WHAT WAS ACTUALLY SAID ON THE

         12   CALLS IN THE ANALYSTS STUFF.  BUT WHETHER WE HAD SAID IT WAS

         13   OUR PRESENT INTENTION, LIKE I HAVE TESTIFIED BEFORE, THAT

         14   WAS PRETTY MUCH CONSENSUS ALL THE WAY ALONG.  I THINK IT WAS

         15   CONSENSUS ALL THE WAY ALONG.

         16   Q.  NOW, LET ME DIRECT YOUR ATTENTION TO PAGE 14 -- BATES

         17   NUMBER 14 OF DX 2445, WHICH WE LOOKED AT A MINUTE AGO.

         18             DO YOU STILL HAVE THAT THERE?

         19   A.  ARE WE STILL WITH THE SAME DOCUMENT?

         20   Q.  NO, WE'RE AT A DIFFERENT DOCUMENT.

         21   A.  CAN YOU GIVE ME THE NUMBER OF THE PRESS RELEASE -- THE

         22   DRAFT PRESS RELEASE?

         23   Q.  DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT 2445, WHICH I THINK IS NOT A DRAFT

         24   PRESS RELEASE, BUT IS A P.R. DOCUMENT.

         25   A.  CAN, BY CHANCE, I CLEAR AWAY A FEW OF THESE?  I'VE GOT
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          1   THEM ALL HERE, AND I'M HAVING TROUBLE FIGURING OUT WHICH

          2   ONES TO KEEP.  I'VE GOT THIS ONE.  SHOULD I KEEP ALL OF

          3   THESE HERE?

          4   Q.  YES.

          5   A.  OKAY.  I GOT IT.

          6   Q.  WOULD YOU GO BACK TO THE LANGUAGE THAT WE WERE LOOKING

          7   AT, WHICH I READ TO YOU, WHICH SAYS -- JUST BEFORE WE HAD

          8   THE BENCH CONFERENCE -- "RIGHT BEFORE GOING PUBLIC WITH THE

          9   ODYSSEY ACQUISITION, THAT APOLLO HAS RENEWED ITS INTERNET

         10   EXPLORER AGREEMENT THROUGH AUGUST 2000."

         11             DOES THE DATE AUGUST 2000 HAVE ANYTHING TO DO WITH

         12   THE AOL/MICROSOFT AGREEMENT ABOUT INTERNET EXPLORER?

         13   A.  I'D HAVE TO GO BACK AND LOOK AT THE AGREEMENT.  MY

         14   RECOLLECTION WAS THAT IT WAS TWO YEARS FROM JANUARY 1, 1999.

         15   Q.  OKAY.

         16   A.  BUT THERE MAY BE AN AUGUST DATE THAT SOMEHOW STARTS THE

         17   FOUR YEARS FROM RUNNING.  (SIC)

         18             MR. WARDEN:  NOW, I'D LIKE THE WITNESS TO BE SHOWN

         19   DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT 2518, WHICH I OFFER UNDER SEAL, YOUR

         20   HONOR.

         21             MR. BOIES:  NO OBJECTION, YOUR HONOR.

         22   BY MR. WARDEN:

         23   Q.  DO YOU RECOGNIZE THIS DOCUMENT, MR. COLBURN?

         24   A.  I CAN SEE FROM THE COVER IT LOOKS TO BE THE BOARD DECK.

         25   IT'S HARD TO TELL IF IT'S A DRAFT OR IT'S THE ACTUAL BOARD
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          1   DECK THAT WE USED FOR --

          2             THE COURT:  YOU CALLED IT THE BOARD WHAT?

          3             THE WITNESS:  THE BOARD DECK.

          4             THE COURT:  DECK?

          5             THE WITNESS:  YES, DECK, D-E-C-K.

          6             THE COURT:  ALL RIGHT.

          7             THE WITNESS:  IT'S LIKE WHEN THE PAGES ARE ALIGNED

          8   LIKE THIS, WE JUST CALL IT A DECK -- A BOARD OF DIRECTORS

          9   DECK OF WHICH WE WOULD USE AS THE BASIS OF FINALLY APPROVING

         10   THE TRANSACTION.

         11             THE COURT:  ALL RIGHT.  2518 IS ADMITTED UNDER

         12   SEAL.

         13                                   (WHEREUPON, DEFENDANT'S

         14                                   EXHIBIT NUMBER 2518 WAS

         15                                   RECEIVED IN EVIDENCE.)

         16             THE WITNESS:  WHETHER I ACTUALLY REVIEWED THIS

         17   DECK, I DON'T KNOW.  AGAIN, I WAS INVOLVED REALLY FOCUSING

         18   ON THE SUN PIECE OF THE PUZZLE AND NOT TOO MUCH ON THE

         19   PREPARATION OF THE BOARD DECK OR DEALING WITH THOSE

         20   ACTIVITIES.

         21   BY MR. WARDEN:

         22   Q.  I WANT TO DIRECT YOUR ATTENTION AT THIS POINT TO THE

         23   PAGE WHICH HAS THE BATES NUMBER 098?

         24   A.  IS THERE A PAGE NUMBER FOR THE DECK ITSELF?

         25   Q.  YES.  IT'S 91, I BELIEVE, ASSUMING THAT THERE IS ONLY
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          1   ONE SERIES OF NUMBERS.  YES, IT'S PAGE 91.

          2   A.  IS IT ENTITLED "COMMUNICATIONS PLAN"?

          3   Q.  YES.

          4   A.  "COMMUNICATIONS OBJECTIVES."

          5   Q.  YES.  AND THAT SETS FORTH AS THE THIRD ITEM, DOES IT

          6   NOT -- AND THIS PAGE I AM AUTHORIZED TO USE IN OPEN COURT,

          7   YOUR HONOR.

          8             THE COURT:  ALL RIGHT.

          9   BY MR. WARDEN:

         10   Q.  NUMBER 3, "AVOID ANY APPEARANCE OF DIRECT CONFLICT WITH

         11   MICROSOFT."

         12             DO YOU SEE THAT?

         13   A.  I DO.

         14   Q.  WAS THAT COMMUNICATIONS PLAN OR OBJECTIVE EVER CHANGED?

         15   A.  WELL, I'M GOING TO ASSUME BECAUSE IT'S IN THIS BOARD

         16   DECK, THAT THIS WAS WHAT WAS ULTIMATELY SENT TO THE BOARD

         17   FOR APPROVAL.  AND I DON'T HAVE ANY REASON TO KNOW -- WHEN

         18   YOU SAY "CHANGE," FROM THE TIME THAT THE BOARD APPROVED IT

         19   UNTIL THE TIME WE ANNOUNCED IT?  IS THAT THE PERIOD OF

         20   CHANGE?

         21   Q.  YES.

         22   A.  I WOULD HAVE NO IDEA.  I HAVE NOT KNOWLEDGE THAT, (A)

         23   WHAT WAS APPROVED, AND (B) WHETHER IT WAS CHANGED.

         24   Q.  OKAY.  LET ME DIRECT YOUR ATTENTION TO PAGE BATES

         25   NUMBER 094.
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          1   A.  WHAT PAGE?  CAN YOU GIVE ME A PAGE NUMBER?

          2   Q.  THAT IS PAGE 88.

          3   A.  OKAY.  THAT'S ENTITLED "MICROSOFT RELATIONSHIP."

          4   Q.  YES.  "CONTINUED."  NUMBER 3, "IMPACT ON PERCEPTION OF

          5   HOW AOL VIEWS OPERATING SYSTEMS."

          6             THE FIRST ITEM IS THAT "AOL IS NOT IN THE

          7   OPERATING SYSTEM BUSINESS, AND HAS NO PLANS TO ENTER THAT

          8   BUSINESS."  THE WANT TO WORK WITH MULTIPLE VENDORS.

          9             BUT IF YOU'LL GO DOWN TO THE FOURTH BULLET POINT,

         10   UNDER THAT HEADING, THE BOARD IS THERE ADVISED, IS IT NOT --

         11   ZEUS, BY THE WAY, IS THE CODE NAME FOR SUN IN THESE

         12   DOCUMENTS, ISN'T IT?

         13   A.  YES, IT IS.

         14   Q.  "SIMILARLY, WHILE WE WORK WITH ZEUS -- SUN -- AND OTHERS

         15   TO CREATE NEW AOL P.C.'S WHICH BOOT UP AOL AND DO NOT USE

         16   WINDOWS AT ALL, WE ARE DEVELOPING AOL FOR THE DESKTOP

         17   VERSION OF NT."

         18             SO YOUR BOARD WAS ADVISED AT THAT TIME THAT YOU

         19   WERE CREATING NEW AOL P.C.'S, WHICH WOULD NOT USE WINDOWS --

         20   AN OPERATING SYSTEM -- AND WOULD BOOT UP AOL, CORRECT?

         21   A.  WELL, AGAIN, SINCE THESE ARE NOT MY WORDS, AND IT SAYS

         22   "TO CREATE NEW APOLLO P.C.'S," AGAIN, THE REFERENCE HERE

         23   COULD BE TO PERSONAL COMPUTERS, I GUESS.

         24             THE REFERENCE COULD ALSO BE TO OTHER PLATFORM

         25   DEVICES THAT WOULD NOT USE WINDOWS AT ALL, AS WELL.  I'M
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          1   TRYING TO REMEMBER WHAT THE PLATFORM DEAL WAS WITH SUN.  AND

          2   THE PLATFORM DEAL WITH SUN WAS NOT FOCUSED ON ANY SPECIFIC

          3   DEVICE, BUT RATHER THE IDEA WAS YOU WOULD SELECT A DEVICE,

          4   AND ONCE YOU SELECT A DEVICE, THEN WE WOULD SORT OF WORK

          5   TOGETHER TO GET AOL RUNNING ON THAT DEVICE, WHATEVER THAT

          6   VERSION WOULD MEAN.

          7   Q.  AND THAT REFERS TO WORKING WITH SUN AND OTHERS TO CREATE

          8   AOL P.C.'S.

          9             HAVEN'T YOU WORKED WITH OTHER OEM'S TO CREATE AOL

         10   P.C.'S?

         11   A.  WE HAVE HAD DISCUSSIONS WITH SOME OEM'S ABOUT

         12   BUILDING -- AND MAYBE WE SHOULD DEFINE WHAT AN AOL P.C. IS.

         13   DO YOU WANT ME TO DO THAT FOR A MOMENT?

         14   Q.  YOU CALL IT AN AOL P.C., RIGHT?  IT'S A DESKTOP MACHINE;

         15   IS THAT CORRECT?

         16   A.  WELL, THERE'S TWO INSTANTIATIONS OF THIS.  ONE WOULD BE

         17   WHERE IT RUNS ON WINDOWS, AND REALLY IT'S THE ONLY

         18   APPLICATION THAT'S THERE BEYOND WHAT WINDOWS REQUIRES.  AND

         19   THAT'S WHAT WE CALL AN AOL P.C.  SO YOU SIGN IT UP, AND AOL

         20   IS SORT OF THE MAIN THING IN FRONT OF YOU, BUT IT STILL HAS

         21   ALL THE WINDOWS STUFF IN IT AND WHATEVER MICROSOFT PUTS IN

         22   IT.

         23             AND THEN THERE IS ANOTHER INSTANTIATION OF AN AOL

         24   P.C., WHICH MIGHT BE IN A SORT OF P.C. FUNCTIONALITY, BUT

         25   THAT COULD CONCEIVABLY RUN ON A DIFFERENT OPERATING SYSTEM.
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          1             AS TO THE SECOND, WHICH I ASSUME THAT'S YOUR LINE

          2   OF QUESTIONING REGARDING THE OEM'S -- THE LATTER -- I THINK

          3   WE'VE HAD SOME LIMITED DISCUSSIONS WITH FOLKS -- SOME OEM'S

          4   ON THIS, OR RELATIVELY FEW, BUT IT'S NEVER COME TO FRUITION

          5   IN ANY WAY.  IT JUST SEEMS TOO HARD TO DO.

          6   Q.  TOO HARD TO DO.  BUT YOU'RE STILL TALKING WITH OEM'S

          7   ABOUT THIS?

          8   A.  I THINK PRETTY MUCH THE LATTER TYPE OF AOL P.C. AND

          9   BUILDING A P.C.-TYPE FUNCTIONALITY THAT IS REALLY AN

         10   ALTERNATIVE TO WINDOWS ARE LARGELY DEAD.  I DON'T KNOW OF

         11   ANY CURRENT ONES GOING ON.

         12   Q.  NOW, BACK IN 1998, DIDN'T AOL TELL SUN THAT IT WANTED TO

         13   BUILD A MACHINE WITH NO WINTEL CONTENT, A DESKTOP AOL P.C.?

         14   A.  I DON'T KNOW WHAT ALL OUR COMMUNICATIONS WITH SUN HAVE

         15   BEEN.  I DO KNOW THAT WE'VE, LIKE I SAID, INVESTIGATED

         16   WHETHER THAT COULD BE POSSIBLE.  AND I THINK THE FOCUS --

         17   AGAIN, I'M NOT NECESSARILY IN THE MIDDLE OF THOSE

         18   DISCUSSIONS UNTIL A POINT IN TIME WHERE THERE IS A DEAL TO

         19   BE DONE.

         20             BUT WITH THAT SAID, WHAT I RECOLLECT WAS THE REAL

         21   GOAL WAS TO BRING THE PRICE DOWN ON THE MACHINE.  AND THAT'S

         22   WHY WE HAD BEEN FOCUSING ON SOMETHING ALTERNATIVE TO

         23   WINDOWS, AT LEAST IN THE DISCUSSIONS I WAS INVOLVED IN, TO

         24   COMBAT AND JUST GET THE PRICE OF THE P.C. AS LOW AS WE

         25   COULD.
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          1             AND THEN WHAT HAS HAPPENED IS THE PRICE HAS SORT

          2   OF FALLEN OUT IN THE P.C. MARKET ANYWAY.  SO THE REAL NEED

          3   TO COME UP WITH AN ALTERNATIVE HAD SORT OF GONE AWAY.  AT

          4   LEAST THAT'S MY UNDERSTANDING.

          5   Q.  DO YOU RECALL THAT STEVE CASE MET WITH SCOTT MC NEALY OF

          6   SUN IN JUNE OF 1998 AND CASE TOLD HIM THAT AOL WAS

          7   CONTINUING TO SEARCH FOR NON-MIRCOSOFT ALTERNATIVES TO RUN

          8   AND EXPAND YOUR BUSINESS?

          9   A.  I'M NOT SPECIFICALLY AWARE OF ANYTHING IN THAT REGARD.

         10   Q.  OKAY.  WOULD YOU BE SURPRISED IF MILES GILBURNE AND

         11   BARRY SCHULER HAD TOLD SUN IN THE SUMMER OF 1998 THAT AOL

         12   INTENDED TO STANDARDIZE UPON THE JAVA PLATFORM AS THEIR ONLY

         13   AOL ANYWHERE CLIENT ARCHITECTURE, THEREBY BREAKING THEIR

         14   DEADLY EMBRACE WITH MICROSOFT?

         15   A.  WELL, ALL I CAN TELL YOU IS WHAT THE FACTS OF THE MATTER

         16   ARE, WHICH IS THAT IS NOT HAPPENING AT ALL.  TO THE EXTENT

         17   WE ARE PURSUING A MULTIPLE-DEVICE STRATEGY, WE ARE LOOKING

         18   TO WORK WITH ALL THE OS PEOPLE WHO ARE IN THAT BUSINESS.

         19   WHAT WE'RE STRIVING FOR IS UBIQUITY, NOT SINGLING ANYBODY

         20   OUT IN ONE WAY OR ANOTHER.

         21   Q.  SO YOU'RE NOT FAMILIAR WITH COMMENTS OF THE NATURE THAT

         22   I'VE SUGGESTED?

         23   A.  NO, I AM NOT.

         24             MR. WARDEN:  YOUR HONOR, I WOULD PLACE BEFORE THE

         25   WITNESS AND OFFER AT THIS TIME DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT 2506 AND
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          1   DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT 2449, WHICH IS ALREADY IN EVIDENCE.

          2             THE WITNESS:  DO YOU WANT TO BRING ME ANOTHER

          3   DRAFT OF 2549?

          4   BY MR. WARDEN:

          5   Q.  2449.

          6   A.  2449.

          7             MR. WARDEN:  DISREGARD THE HANDWRITTEN MARKS ON

          8   THE COPY, UNFORTUNATELY.  THOSE ARE NOT PART OF THE

          9   DOCUMENT, MR. COLBURN.

         10             MR. BOIES:  MAY I INQUIRE WHETHER THERE HAS BEEN

         11   ANY FOUNDATION LAID FOR THESE DOCUMENTS AT DEPOSITION?

         12             MR. WARDEN:  THESE DOCUMENTS WERE PRODUCED BY SUN,

         13   AND 2449 IS ALREADY IN EVIDENCE.

         14             2506, MR. POPOFF TESTIFIED HE HAD NO REASON TO

         15   DOUBT THE CONTENT OF THIS EXHIBIT -- THEIR 30(B)(6) WITNESS,

         16   YOUR HONOR.

         17             MR. BOIES:  ON THAT BASIS, YOUR HONOR, I HAVE NO

         18   OBJECTION.

         19             THE COURT:  THESE ARE INTRA-SUN DOCUMENTS?

         20             MR. WARDEN:  THESE ARE INTRA-SUN DOCUMENTS

         21   RELATING TO MEETINGS BETWEEN SUN AND AOL, YOUR HONOR.

         22             THE COURT:  ALL RIGHT.  DEFENDANT'S 2506 IS

         23   ADMITTED.

         24

         25
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          1                                   (WHEREUPON, DEFENDANT'S

          2                                   EXHIBIT NUMBER 2506 WAS

          3                                   RECEIVED IN EVIDENCE.)

          4             MR. WARDEN:  THANK YOU.

          5   BY MR. WARDEN:

          6   Q.  NOW, DIRECTING YOUR ATTENTION INITIALLY TO 2506, DO YOU

          7   SEE THE SECOND PARAGRAPH, THE FIRST BULLET POINT ON PAGE 1,

          8   MR. COLBURN?

          9   A.  WHICH ONE WOULD THAT BE?  "STEVE WAS WELL" OR "STEVE HAS

         10   CONCERNS"?

         11   Q.  "STEVE WAS WELL."

         12   A.  OKAY.  THAT I SEE.

         13   Q.  "STEVE WAS WELL INFORMED ON OUR EFFORTS WITH MILES

         14   GILBURNE AND TEAM, AND HAD REVIEWED THE ANALOG SET-TOP

         15   PROPOSAL SUBMITTED IN MAY.  HE ENCOURAGED US TO CONTINUE

         16   WORKING WITH MILES AS THEY CONTINUE TO SEARCH FOR

         17   NON-MIRCOSOFT ALTERNATIVES TO RUN/EXPAND THEIR BUSINESS."

         18             DOES IT SURPRISE OR STARTLE YOU THAT MR. CASE HAS

         19   BEEN REPORTED MAKING SUCH A STATEMENT?

         20   A.  WELL, FIRST OF ALL, THIS IS A SUN INTERNAL DOCUMENT.

         21   Q.  THAT'S CORRECT.

         22   A.  AND THEY ARE PUTTING THEIR OWN -- MAY I SAY IT -- SPIN

         23   ON WHAT THEY THINK THE CONVERSATION IS.  AND THIS ONE IS

         24   EVEN HARD TO TELL BECAUSE I DON'T KNOW IF HE WAS REPORTING

         25   ON A CONVERSATION HE'S ACTUALLY IN.  IT'S HARD TO SAY.
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          1             "SCOTT," IT SAYS "JOHN MARSELLE, AND WOODY MEWBORN

          2   CALLED ON STEVE CASE."  SO WE HAVE TO FIGURE OUT WHETHER HE

          3   WAS ACTUALLY AT THE MEETING OR HE'S REPORTING ON SOMETHING

          4   HE WASN'T ACTUALLY A WITNESS TO.

          5             ASSUMING HE WAS THERE, THEN AGAIN, HE'S REPORTING

          6   IN HIS OWN WORDS WHAT HE THINKS, YOU KNOW, STEVE'S SENSE --

          7   MR. CASE'S SENSE OF THE WORLD WAS.

          8             AND THEN I WOULD CONTINUE TO SAY THAT BY

          9   DEFINITION IN WORKING WITH SUN, YOU'RE LARGELY GOING TO BE

         10   WORKING WITH NON-MIRCOSOFT ALTERNATIVES, FOR THE MOST PART,

         11   BECAUSE, IN THE ALTERNATIVE, THE DEVICE SPHERE -- THEY'RE

         12   LOOKING AT THEIR OWN KIND OF THINGS THAT THEY'RE WORKING

         13   ON.  I KNOW THE ANALOG SET-TOP PROPOSAL, WE NEVER ENDED UP

         14   WORKING WITH THEM ON, TO THE BEST OF MY KNOWLEDGE.

         15             SO IT'S HARD REALLY TO DISCERN WHAT'S COMING OUT

         16   OF THIS, OTHER THAN THE FACT THAT, AS WE SAID BEFORE, IT'S

         17   IN AOL'S INTEREST TO BE ON ANY OPERATING SYSTEM THAT MIGHT

         18   BE OUT THERE -- TO REALLY BE ON ANY OF THE DEVICES THAT ARE

         19   OUT THERE.

         20             WE KNEW THAT SUN WAS WORKING ON CREATING PLATFORMS

         21   FOR THOSE OTHER DEVICES, AND IT WOULD CERTAINLY MAKE SENSE

         22   FOR US TO WORK WITH THEM IN THAT REGARD, OR SEE IF WE COULD

         23   WORK TOGETHER IN THAT REGARD.

         24   Q.  OKAY.  LET'S TURN NOW TO DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT 2449, THE

         25   FIRST PAGE.  AND THIS IS A MEMORANDUM OR E-MAIL FROM
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          1   MR. MEWBORN AGAIN ON A MEETING THAT BILL RADUCHEL -- DID I

          2   PRONOUNCE THAT CORRECTLY?

          3   A.  IT'S RADUCHEL.

          4   Q.  -- RADUCHEL AND THE AOL VIRTUAL STRATEGIC TEAM HAD WITH

          5   MILES GILBURNE, BARRY SCHULER AND DON DAVIS.

          6             AND IT STATES HERE THAT ONE OF THE DECISIONS -- IF

          7   YOU WILL LOOK AT THE SECOND NUMBERED PARAGRAPH AT THE TOP OF

          8   THE PAGE -- SUPPOSEDLY MADE AT THIS MEETING WAS "TO

          9   STANDARDIZE UPON THE JAVA PLATFORM AS THEIR ONLY `AOL

         10   ANYWHERE' CLIENT ARCHITECTURE, THEREBY BREAKING THEIR DEADLY

         11   EMBRACE WITH MICROSOFT."

         12             NOW, ARE YOU SURPRISED TO SEE THAT COMMENT

         13   RECORDED?

         14   A.  WELL, AGAIN, I WOULD SAY THIS IS A SUN DOCUMENT.  AND I

         15   THINK EVERYONE WELL KNOWS HOW SUN AND MICROSOFT WORK

         16   TOGETHER, OR DO NOT.  SO WHEN SUN TALKS ABOUT MICROSOFT,

         17   THEY TYPICALLY TALK ABOUT THEM IN THESE EMOTIONAL TERMS.

         18   THAT'S (A).

         19             (B), AS IT MAKES IT CLEAR, ANYTHING THEY'RE DOING

         20   HERE IS SUBJECT TO FINAL NEGOTIATION, AND WE KNOW THAT AOL

         21   HAS NEVER MADE ANY OF THESE COMMITMENTS.  MOREOVER, THERE IS

         22   NOT EVEN A DEVICE OUT THERE, AT LEAST THAT I KNOW OF, THAT

         23   RUNS ANYTHING ON SUN WITH ANYTHING ON AOL AS FAR AS AN

         24   ALTERNATIVE DEVICE.

         25   Q.  WELL, ALTERNATIVE DEVICES ARE A PRESENTLY-BEING-CREATED
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          1   BUSINESS, ARE THEY NOT?

          2   A.  THAT'S CORRECT.  THEY ARE AN EMERGING BUSINESS, BUT VERY

          3   EARLY ON.

          4   Q.  AND YOU'RE SUGGESTING THAT MORE EMOTIVE LANGUAGE IS USED

          5   AT SUN THAN AT AOL ABOUT MICROSOFT?

          6   A.  WELL, I THINK SUN DOES -- I MEAN I DON'T WANT TO SPEAK

          7   FOR SUN, BUT MY SENSE IN MEETINGS WITH THEM, THEY DO HAVE A

          8   DIFFERENT PERSPECTIVE ON MICROSOFT THAN WE DO.

          9   Q.  HOW ABOUT THE "DEADLY BEAST FROM REDMOND" THAT WE HEARD

         10   ABOUT LAST OCTOBER?  THAT WAS IN AN AOL DOCUMENT, WASN'T IT?

         11   A.  WELL, WE HAVE OUR MOMENTS, TOO.

         12   Q.  HOW ABOUT THE PARTNERSHIP BETWEEN STALIN AND F.D.R.

         13   AGAINST HITLER THAT WE HEARD ABOUT, TOO?

         14   A.  THAT'S ALL THE SAME E-MAIL.  AND I'M NOT EVEN ALL OF

         15   THOSE COMMENTS WERE OURS.  SOME OF THEM MIGHT HAVE BEEN FROM

         16   NETSCAPE, AS I RECALL.

         17   Q.  ALL RIGHT.  AND IF YOU GO ON DOWN THE PAGE TO THE FOURTH

         18   BULLET POINT THAT'S NOT NUMBERED FURTHER DOWN THE PAGE --

         19   A.  WITH THE ASTERISK?

         20   Q.  THE ONE THAT SAYS "THE AOL" -- YES.  "THE AOL/P.C. WILL

         21   BE BASED UPON JAVA P.C. FOR ALL INTEL PLATFORMS," AND GOES

         22   ON AND SAYS, "NO MICROSOFT CONTENT."

         23             DO YOU SEE THAT?

         24   A.  I DO.

         25   Q.  WAS THAT AN OBJECTIVE OF AOL AT THIS TIME?
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          1   A.  WELL, AGAIN, I'LL PREFACE BY THESE ARE ALL SUN COMMENTS

          2   AND SUN'S TAKE ON A MEETING WHERE THEY'RE LOOKING FOR THE

          3   WORLD AND USING ANYTHING TO REALLY -- TO BUILD ON WHAT COULD

          4   BE OF AN AOL RELATIONSHIP.

          5             I ALSO MENTIONED BEFORE THE AOL P.C., WHICH WE

          6   WERE LOOKING TO FIGURE OUT A WAY TO CREATE, AS I RECALL, THE

          7   LOWEST-COST P.C. WE COULD.

          8             OUR SENSE WAS IF YOU COULD STRIP AWAY MOST OF THE

          9   GUTS AND JUST HAVE A VERY THIN OPERATING SYSTEM IN IT WITH

         10   AOL CLIENT RUNNING ON IT, YOU COULD DRIVE THE COST OF THE

         11   P.C. DOWN.

         12             I'M NOT SO SURE IT WAS SO FOCUSED ON MICROSOFT

         13   COMPONENTS CONTENT, PER SE, BECAUSE PART OF THAT EQUATION

         14   WAS WHAT IT DID TO THE COST, AND THE HARD DRIVE

         15   REQUIREMENTS, AND EVERYTHING LIKE THIS, AGAIN, AS I REMEMBER

         16   BACK THEN.

         17             AND THEN EVENTUALLY -- WELL, THIS HAS NEVER COME

         18   TO FRUITION, AT LEAST IN PART BECAUSE, AS I UNDERSTAND THE

         19   P.C. MARKET, THAT P.C.'S HAVE COME DOWN SUBSTANTIALLY IN

         20   PRICE.

         21   Q.  OKAY.  DO YOU RECALL THAT IN THE SEPTEMBER 22 E-MAIL

         22   FROM MR. GILBURNE, WHICH IS DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT 2510, THERE

         23   WAS REFERENCE TO THE AOL/SUN COLLABORATION AS A "PLATFORM

         24   DEAL."  DO YOU RECALL THAT?

         25   A.  I'M LOOKING FOR THE E-MAIL -- THE EXHIBIT.  I DON'T HAVE
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          1   ALL THE EXHIBITS UP HERE.

          2             I HAVE IT.  THANK YOU.  CAN YOU POINT ME TO THE --

          3   Q.  IT'S THE BOTTOM OF THE FIRST PAGE.

          4   A.  OKAY.

          5   Q.  AND IN THE FIRST SENTENCE AND AGAIN THE THIRD SENTENCE,

          6   THERE'S REFERENCE TO THE "PLATFORM DEAL."

          7   A.  CORRECT.

          8   Q.  WHAT IS THE PLATFORM AGAIN?

          9   A.  AGAIN, I TESTIFIED, I THOUGHT, EARLIER ON THIS.  WE WERE

         10   INTERESTED -- I THINK BOTH SUN AND AOL -- TO START WORKING

         11   ON SOME ALTERNATIVE DEVICES THAT WOULD RUN ON A JAVA

         12   PLATFORM.  AND ONE OF THE THINGS THAT WE TRIED TO ARTICULATE

         13   IN THE PLATFORM AGREEMENT WAS TO IDENTIFY CERTAIN PROJECTS

         14   THAT WE WOULD WORK TOGETHER THAT WOULD RUN ON A JAVA

         15   PLATFORM, LIKE, FOR EXAMPLE, IDENTIFYING A DEVICE.

         16             LET'S SAY WE PICKED A CELL PHONE AND SAY, "OKAY,

         17   LET'S WORK TOGETHER TO SEE IF WE CAN GET AN AOL CLIENT OF

         18   SOME SORT RUNNING ON A JAVA-BASED CELL PHONE."

         19   Q.  OKAY.  AND WHEN YOU SAY "THE AGREEMENT," WHAT AGREEMENT

         20   ARE YOU REFERRING TO?

         21   A.  I BELIEVE, AS PART OF THE ACQUISITION, AND RIGHT AROUND

         22   THAT TIMING AND THE COLLABORATION WITH SUN, WE ENTERED INTO

         23   SUCH A PLATFORM AGREEMENT OR DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT.  I

         24   HAVEN'T LOOKED BACK AT IT IN QUITE A WHILE.

         25             AND THAT'S THE DOCUMENT WE HAD BEEN WORKING ON
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          1   REALLY EVEN PRIOR TO THE NETSCAPE DISCUSSIONS.

          2   Q.  WELL, THAT COLLABORATION -- IS THAT THE STRATEGIC

          3   DEVELOPMENT AND MARKETING AGREEMENT THAT YOU'RE THE

          4   SIGNATORY OF?

          5   A.  I DON'T KNOW.  THERE'S VARIOUS AGREEMENTS.  THERE ARE,

          6   AS I RECALL, FIVE OR SIX THAT WERE ENTERED INTO.  THE BIG

          7   AGREEMENT WAS FOCUSED ON THE ENTERPRISE SIDE OF THE

          8   BUSINESS.

          9             AND THEN THERE WERE MULTIPLE -- WHAT YOU MIGHT

         10   CALL SECONDARY AGREEMENTS.  I BELIEVE ONE WAS THE

         11   PLATFORM -- DEALT WITH PLATFORM.  WHETHER THAT'S THE NAME OF

         12   IT OR NOT, I DON'T KNOW.

         13   Q.  DID YOU SIGN ALL THE SUN AGREEMENTS?

         14   A.  I RECALL THAT I DID.

         15   Q.  NOW, WELL, THERE IS IN THE RECORD ALREADY, UNDER SEAL, A

         16   DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT 2463, WHICH IS ENTITLED "STRATEGIC

         17   DEVELOPMENT AND MARKETING AGREEMENT."

         18       (PASSING DOCUMENT TO WITNESS.)

         19   A.  THANK YOU.

         20   Q.  IS THIS THE AGREEMENT YOU'RE REFERRING TO?

         21   A.  WHAT I BELIEVE I AM REFERRING TO IS PART OF THE STACK OF

         22   DOCUMENTS -- AND, AGAIN, I HAVE NOT REVIEWED THIS, SO I

         23   COULD TAKE MORE TIME HERE.

         24             THERE IS A JOINT DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT THAT YOU

         25   SEE IS ATTACHED.
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          1   Q.  I AM DIRECTING YOUR ATTENTION TO THIS.  IS THIS WHAT YOU

          2   HAVE?

          3   A.  YES.  I HAVE ALL THESE.  BUT THIS IS THE DOCUMENT I

          4   THINK I'M TALKING ABOUT.

          5   Q.  "JOINT DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT"?

          6   A.  RIGHT.

          7   Q.  OKAY.

          8   A.  WITHOUT SPENDING A LOT OF TIME GOING THROUGH THESE --

          9   Q.  NO, NO.  THAT'S FINE.  AND THE JOINT DEVELOPMENT

         10   AGREEMENT IN GENERAL COVERS WHAT TOPIC?

         11   A.  AGAIN, AS I RECOLLECT, IT DEALT WITH PICKING A DEVICE OR

         12   DEVICES TO WORK TOGETHER ON TO CREATE AN AOL APPLICATION

         13   THAT WOULD WORK WITH THE JAVA-BASED PLATFORM.

         14   Q.  RIGHT.  AND WHAT DOES THE "STRATEGIC DEVELOPMENT AND

         15   MARKETING AGREEMENT" COVER, IN GENERAL?

         16   A.  IT FOCUSES MORE ON THE OVERALL ENTERPRISE SIDE OF THE

         17   EQUATION AND OUR COLLABORATION THERE -- HOW WE WERE GOING TO

         18   WORK TOGETHER IN DEVELOPMENT AND MARKETING.  IT FOCUSED ON

         19   THE ENTERPRISE SIDE OF THE BUSINESS.  I'M SORRY.

         20   Q.  OKAY.  SO YOU'RE DISTINGUISHING BETWEEN THE ENTERPRISE

         21   AND THE PLATFORM; IS THAT CORRECT?

         22   A.  FOR PURPOSES OF THE DISCUSSION WE WERE HAVING, I BELIEVE

         23   I WAS REFERRING TO THE JOINT DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT, WHICH IS

         24   REALLY WHAT I PRIMARILY WAS WORKING ON IN THIS

         25   JUNE/JULY/AUGUST/SEPTEMBER PLATFORM -- PERIOD.  AND THEN IT
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          1   GOT SORT OF MOVED IN -- EVEN INTO OCTOBER, PROBABLY, I WAS

          2   WORKING ON IT QUITE A BIT.  AND THEN IT GOT REALLY LAYERED

          3   IN, SO IT WAS DONE CONCURRENTLY WITH THE ENTERPRISE

          4   COLLABORATION.

          5   Q.  OKAY.  NOW, THE ENTERPRISE COLLABORATION -- WOULD THAT

          6   INVOLVE DESKTOPS, CLIENTS?

          7   A.  IS DESKTOPS AND CLIENTS -- IS THERE A COMMA THERE, OR

          8   ARE YOU SAYING "DESKTOP CLIENTS"?

          9   Q.  NO, NO.  BOTH.

         10   A.  PART OF THE RELATIONSHIP, AS I REMEMBER, DID DEAL WITH

         11   THE BROWSER AND APPLICATIONS OR GREATER FUNCTIONALITY BUILT

         12   AROUND IT, LIKE COMMUNICATOR, AND THAT PART OF THIS WAS BOTH

         13   SOME DEVELOPMENT AROUND THAT, AS WELL AS SOME MARKETING OF

         14   THAT PACKAGE, WHICH WOULD PROBABLY INCLUDE SERVERS AS WELL

         15   INTO THE ENTERPRISE WORLD.

         16   Q.  OKAY.  AND THAT'S THE SUBJECT OF DEFENDANT'S

         17   EXHIBIT 2463, THE TOP ONE IN THE PILE YOU HAVE?

         18   A.  YES.  IN PART, IN ADDITION TO DEALING WITH DEVELOPING

         19   ALL THE SERVER SIDE OF THE BUSINESS AND MARKETING THAT WHOLE

         20   ARRAY OF PRODUCTS.

         21   Q.  RIGHT.  THAT'S THE ENTERPRISE?

         22   A.  I MEAN, I THINK IT'S ALL FOCUSED PRIMARILY ON

         23   ENTERPRISE.

         24   Q.  RIGHT.

         25   A.  BUT THAT'S THE COMPONENT PIECES, YES.
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          1   Q.  OKAY.  I WANT TO DIRECT YOUR --

          2             MR. WARDEN:  THIS WOULD BE A GOOD TIME TO BREAK

          3   FOR LUNCH, YOUR HONOR.

          4             THE COURT:  ALL RIGHT.  2:00.

          5             (WHEREUPON, THE ABOVE-ENTITLED MATTER WAS RECESSED

          6   FOR LUNCH AT 12:20 P.M.)

          7
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